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Corporate Profile

N AR

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1123) has a long-established business
partnership with Fujifilm Japan as the sole authorised distributor of Fujifilm products in Hong Kong and
Macau since 1968. The Group has established an extensive network of importers and distributors in
these two markets.

In August 2013, the Group acquired certain business assets from YCY Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, and Galerien und PartnerPlus Limited, expanding its business to the sales of consumer
electronics products and household electrical appliances under the names of “AV Life”, “Life Electric”
and “Life Digital” as well as the provision of professional audio-visual advisory and custom design and
installation service.

Backed to September 2010, the Group was appointed by Fujifiim Japan as the exclusive agent in Hong
Kong, the first overseas market outside Japan, to launch and trade Fujifiim skincare products via the
brand name of “ASTALIFT”.

In July 2001, the Group acquired Fotomax Holdings Limited and started to broaden its network from
wholesale to include retail business. Through this expansion, the Group operates Fotomax, a leading
retail chain that provides photographic processing services across Hong Kong. Fotomax shops use
Fujifilm digital laser printing technology to provide high quality photofinishing and digital output
services. Fotomax also provides a full range of imaging services include digital imaging and professional
imaging services as well as the sales of other imaging related accessories.

In 2005, the Group established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Beijing for arrangement of future expansion
of its wholesale and retail services network following the granting of certificates through the Mainland
and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), as preferred Hong Kong wholesale
and retail service supplier.

In August 2015, the Group acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong operations of kikki.K, an international
retail chain that sells premium Scandinavian-designed stationery, gifts and homeware products.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda on 6 July, 1994 and
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 19 September, 1994. The Group is held by the public
39.89% and by its founder, the Sun family 60.11% through Searich Group Limited, Fine Products Limited
and Dago Corporation.

FERRESMEBERQIBDRDMAE  12)EBALAELARANEBEHN - B1968FUR-—BEAETTEMNES
FMORFIMME—RAEHEE - RECEEMETSELEZNAOBR 2 HBRAE -
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REXBZEHEEFEMRIAESE » LLUTAV Life £/EFF | [Life Electric 45828 K[ Life Digital 4 & &H5
mERE  ERREHEXTTREBTHR R RTERE -

EBHZE2010598 KEREBRAELZAEAHEBEEERNETBERARE » FEBRABAUIIERELEEERN
NS - SEEIERERN LAl ASTALIFT R &R R S E A RS -

2001578 » REBANREEZZERERAR > BESIHRAKNEBEREZZEREH - REXZREBHERENS
BIREHEE - BERRWBER  SESEREZNER - REZFMBETNEBELHDNRERMSEEN+
R EIHERE o REETRHE—RIINVEERYE @ SRHEBEEREESGRYE @ URHEEHEMBEESZEGER -
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Mission Statement

Our mission is to fully satisfy and exceed the
expectations of our customers by delivering
exceptional premium products and services in

our specialist fields of photography and imaging
services, electronic goods and services, and skincare
products. Parallel with this, our mission is to satisfy
our shareholders by achieving steady, prudent growth
and satisfactory returns on their investment. This dual
mission is being achieved through our long-term
commitment to the communities of Hong Kong and

Macau where we operate.

.¢¥$

BEMHNEEREREBEREEBRE EFERRRE
UREBEEMEZXEE  RESHNEEER KRR
¥ ZometBEMEERE o EkER - RMPTED
BMEFHEBRIER  ARRRETREEER - RME
BERRRMKEER  HMibBERENAE  LEL
EREAMELERE

Corporate Principles

Fostering strong internal relationships between
management and employees

Creating an environment that will encourage
employees to be confident and competent
Empowering our staff to boost employees’ morale
Striving to provide quality service and distribute
diversified products to our customers’ satisfaction
Commitment to effective and open communication
with our shareholders, our customers, our
colleagues and the community

Actively seeking opportunities to help the

community

TEEFS

BUERRREFNEBEEZ
BUBENTARE  BEBBRRAAGLH
BT

HERETEL  RESEIZER
RESHRERZTLLER  CHEEBLRE
HRR BT  BEIRMEREERZER
Btk



Financial Highlights
B RE

FEeRaxEH CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT DATA
BE3AIALEE Year ended 31 March
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BY¥TrT B¥TxT BT BT B¥%Tx
Yz Revenue 886,668 966,658 861,669 475,629 436,448
BRELAT (E518),E5R (Loss)/profit before tax (65,846) (31,447) 21,165 40,268 79,501
FrEfiE Income tax expense (3,018) (2,377) (5,480) (7,703) (34,814)
FRIEFEIRAERR AT 2 (Loss)/profit before
(B18) /%% non-controlling interests (68,864) (33,824) 15,685 32,565 44,687
IR Non-controlling interests 1,616 (535) 216 - -
RATHES AEN (Loss)/profit attributable
(B518), &R to owners of the Company (70,480) (33,289) 15,469 32,565 44,687
®rE Dividends = (11,853) (47,412) (64,009) (69,828)
sRrRER Per share data HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
Al 4l B B Al
(F538) BF| (Loss)/earnings (5.95) (2.81) 1.31 2.80 3.84
RHARR 2 Interim dividend = 1.00 - - -
RHERRE R AR B Interim special dividend - - 2.00 2.00 2.00
BIRRERE Proposed final dividend = - 1.00 2.00 2.50
BORRER SR IR B Proposed final special dividend = - 1.00 1.50 1.50
FEeMBERAREH CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA
A3H831H As at 31 March
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT AB¥TT BT  B%Tx
ME - BRERZE Property, plant and equipment 74,717 83,189 77,877 28,961 31,031
REYE Investment properties 190,785 177,185 168,720 197,945 169,690
ma Goodwill - 44,207 80,085 35,878 35,878
mE Trademarks - 14,388 15,173 - -
ReRRTEER Cash and bank balances 260,701 270,192 360,070 542,147 583,674
H R EEEE Other net current assets 160,261 165,301 126,604 64,635 81,634
BEERTRBAERG Total assets less current
liabilities 699,334 768,649 842,885 875,889 914,486
IR Non-controlling interests (1,064) 552 (228) - -
ERBARB Non-current liabilities 29,961 (29,494) (33,902) (31,117) (33,128)
RNBEB AEILRER  Equity attributable
to the owners of the Company 668,309 739,707 808,755 844,772 881,358
% % % % %
ERRERE Debt to equity ratio = _ _ _ _
B OR=E Return on equity (10.53) (4.50) 1.91 3.85 5.07
JRE =R Dividend pay-out ratio N/ATEH (35.61) 306.50 196.56 156.26
TMENEEZE Current ratio 492.27 518.20 483.11 863.40 913.14
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

We have identified key success

and growth drivers in each of our
businesses, and we are looking at new
ways to use these to create additional

growth in a challenging market.
RPACHREXRBESAIRERNER
FHEE - WIEESHHGE - FAZ
FREERRRBI T IHEPRIEEIME
E o

CHKP

The Group’s performance in 2015/2016 was closely tied to the wider Hong Kong retail
environment, which faced quite significant challenges. One factor was weak spending.
The Hong Kong retail market experienced a fall in value over the reporting period,
creating pressure on several industry players. This was compounded by a fall in retail
volume over the last four months of the financial year. Another reason for the retail
sector’s poor performance is that fewer tourists are visiting Hong Kong. In 2015, visitor
arrivals fell by 2.5% as compared to 2014, representing the city’s first annual decline
since 2003.

EEA2015/2016FENREHEERETERELSONEE  BHEERERE -BEZ2—5
HEBES - BATEMSNBRSHAEEZETHR HZETESHEBRESD - VREER
ZBUEARNSTEETHRSBAME - TEXERBENS —BEAFHBIRERLD ° R2015F - ik
BAREK2014F T #2.5% * BEBB2003FUARERFE T ©



In light of these facts and figures, it is not surprising that the Group’s sales were
affected. This was especially the case for the consumer electronic products and
household appliances business, where sales dropped by 8.8% from last year, causing
the Group to recognise an impairment loss of goodwill and trademarks. However, the
downturn has also led to decline in the property leasing market, which is good news
for retailers as premises come up for renewal. We expect to be able to lower our
rental costs and focus on consolidating our businesses in the year ahead — controlling
expenditures, strengthening brand recognition and preference, and marketing cutting-

edge, on-trend products — all of which will help us capitalise when the economy
ultimately recovers.

Since its establishment, the Group has adopted a proactive, flexible approach to times
of economic challenge. This year has been no exception. We are currently implementing
or working on a raft of measures that we believe are appropriate responses to the
tough economic environment, and which should enable us to move ahead as we await
brighter skies. In our Fotomax business, for example, we are paying special attention to
those services that have continued to enjoy growing sales despite the gloomy economic
environment; these include our Year Album, Fotobook and ID photo services. We are
also exploring ways to take advantage of the shift toward mobile phone photography,
which has had a profound impact on our photo developing business. In particular, we
have noted a rising trend among customers to print photos from their smartphones,
which we will accommodate with a smartphone-friendly environment at our shops that

includes free WiFi and phone charging services. | mwwenmus
| —~ ARREAMTEER

Although the Group’s YCY shops saw an overall downturn in sales during the year, they
continued to strengthen the business’ reputation as a premium source of electronic

Newspaper Advertisement

BERES

products and household appliances, particularly in the area of televisions and audio
equipment. The opening of an AV Life branch at SOGO department store in October
2015 further reinforced this positioning. Apart from selling a wide range of AV and
digital products, the store includes an area where customers can try out various audio
products from well-known manufacturers including amplifiers, speakers and DVD
players. The store also introduced the innovative BACCH-SP3D sound effect filter, which
creates a realistic 3D audio effect with only one pair of speakers.

BRRM EEHEHEESIIFEYTRIBI - HEESFERRIAEREBLAEE - #
EREFTHS.8%  EHEERIABERBRBERRE - AW - HETBTFEHYHEEEN S
HETE  YEUTEEHE  HTEHBEFHS - AMEPRFEAREHESRARTEESE
B-EHEX  NERERZTMEEFREHERIRER - ALBEEEABRMNEEER
BHR AR o

BARUR - SEUERERMBIENS EREEERE - REETFTHII - RMESHERMNG
RIREHEE  HELEEEEAYEEELHEERE  RESTEEERZE - KEEEHR
BRE o flm REEEBD  EMARIERKBEFIRTHENHEERWRY » 0 & 55 -
Fotobook &% HEE M R - KM T EMAEELUEEFREZNER - AEHMHRAH
MEFEREZE - H5—RHR  RMIBTFHRERTREEFHIPENRE - BME
BEEHREURESEETFHER  NRURBWIFIRFEZTERE -

BREEENAV LifeEERFEANHERETE » AV LieE/ENEEEBEEEFERRIASEME
EENEKEE  LHESRRIEREED - R2015F108 - SEERKXBERRAV Life
EEHENE  E—DSRLEEEN REEZEEFERIBERN  ZEREEE @ BEF
AJRAASRAREEENTEER © BIFESH - 5B XDVDEKES - &%/&EF 5| ABACCH-
SP3DEMBIEE - EEAIFERER —HIEERFUREEREIDITEUR -



Chairman’s Statement

Magazine Advertisement
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EFERE

The Group’s skincare business continues to introduce new and enhanced products,
accompanying them with the kind of strong brand management initiatives and
promotions that we traditionally do very well. These initiatives are keeping our brands
in the public eye and reinforcing our market presence, and we believe that as the
economy improves, we will see results in this business rise accordingly. We do not
anticipate very rapid turnaround in the current market climate, but the steps we are
taking should position us solidly for future consolidation and growth.

THANKS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As always, my heartfelt thanks go out to the many individuals and groups who have
supported the Group over the year and provided us with practical guidance. Particular
mention must be made of our loyal business partners and investors. Once again, |
would also like to pay tribute to the efforts of our staff members, who have played

an important part in keeping our service standards high and helping maintain a loyal
customer base. With this level of support and commitment among our partners and
employees, | believe we are well set to ride out these challenging times and establish
long-term success.

EENESEREBRTUERTEINRRERERMERRR  TMMESIERTIRURE
e ELERREERMENARBEXRRZERMOT SN  MEMRE @ BELEX
EOZEBREEVERA - HMUFHEEATSRASEEE - HRMNERETAEE
RAREEHNBREMHBEER -

L]

— LT AARVBHZSER-—BEXFEARRHEAZSRNALIRAS - HHBHLEE
BRERREE - AABROEIRH  ZFUBISEERE  BHTWERASHRBEKEREE
BERER - AABE  BESEBRBHUEENIERRETIHERE - AMEERAKR
EBEHE - BAISE -

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman
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Group Structure

SEZRBE

Organization Chart and Structure

Hong Kong and China Operations Property Holding Companies Retail Operations
BERPEES MEZR AT BEXE
I 60% 60%
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Operations Review
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ASTALIFT

Whitening lotion, whitening
essence and whitening cream
ASTALIFT

XH=54EE

Bus Advertisement
BtES

REVENUE AND RESULTS

With the Hong Kong retail market shrinking in value during the year under review, the
Group experienced some of the most difficult operating conditions it has faced in recent
years. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group achieved consolidated turnover of
HK$887 million, a decrease of 8.3% compared to the HK$967 million reported in the
previous year. Excluding a one-off loss from impairment of goodwill and trademarks of
HK$58 million, loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$13 million.
The Board of Directors does not recommend any final dividend for the year.

MERCHANDISING

Photographic Products

Sales of most photographic products have been trending downward in recent years
as smartphones and similar devices with built-in cameras have softened demand for
standalone digital cameras. This, combined with the slowing economy, led to a 9.6%
decrease in the Group’s sales of digital photographic products during the year under
review. After gaining ground in 2014/2015, instant products saw an 18.6% decrease
in sales due to macroeconomic factors and lower spending on non-essentials across
many sectors. The Group continued to promote its advanced new FUJIFILM cameras and
accessories to boost sales, but these products are increasingly becoming the exclusive
domain of serious photography enthusiasts and professionals.

Skincare Products

Results for the Group’s skincare business were within the Management’s expectations.
During the year the segment continued to make progress establishing its online sales
platform after closing its original network of brick-and-mortar outlets in 2014. The product
line is available on the Group’s ASTALIFT website and can also be bought at the FUJIFILM
Studio store in Causeway Bay. A number of new and upgraded products were introduced
during the year, which helped maintain momentum for this business segment.

k¥l

BEESTETSNEERDEFARSE  SELERLFMEHE TRERECENRRT - BZE2016
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Consumer Electronic Products and Household Appliances

Weak consumer sentiment had a strong impact on sales of consumer electronic
products and household appliances during the year. However, the Group’s AV Life, Life
Electric and Life Digital brands continued to gain market exposure and firmly established
themselves as premium sources of electronic products and household appliances,
televisions and audio equipment. Televisions continued to be the segment’s highest-
selling products, contributing 54.4% of total turnover of this segment. The Group is also
now selling iPhones and iPads in two shops, further expanding the range of prestigious,
high-demand products in its portfolio. In light of the Government’s plans to expand

its public housing programme — which will create thousands of new flats that need to
be equipped for daily living — the Group will expand its range of electrical household
appliances in anticipation of higher demand.

Premium Stationery

In August 2015, the Group acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong operations of kikki.K,
an international retail chain that sells premium Scandinavian-designed stationery, gifts
and homeware products. As at 31 March 2016, there were two kikki.K stores operating
in Hong Kong. These exclusive stores offer a range of stylish, high-quality products
such as diaries, calendars, notebooks, journals, pens, pencils, bags and travel cases
that appeal to stationery lovers and people who strive for a high quality of life. These
products are popular worldwide, and Hong Kong is proving no exception. The Group
is confident that this business will continue to establish itself as an excellent way to
expand and diversify revenue. Two more stores opened in May 2016 after the end of
the Group’s financial year.

HERETFERARRAESR

HERNEPDYEEBETERRIASHEMNEE - AT > £SEMAV Life£5EHEF - Life
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SERVICING

Photofinishing and Technical Services

As at 31 March 2016, the Group was operating 71 photofinishing stores across Hong Kong
under the Fotomax brand, the same number as the previous year. Each store continued to
have an average of 3.08 self-service digital kiosks. The volume of prints developed from
digital files amounted to 26.77 million during the year, a 9.4% decrease from the previous
year’s total. By contrast, the number of prints developed by customers from the internet
totalled 4.63 million, representing a 13.7% year-on-year increase. Reflecting the realities of
today’s digital age, 99.4% of all prints developed over the year were from digital files, with
just 0.6% coming from traditional films.

The Group achieved good results from its Imaging Gift Service, which saw sales increase
by 19.4% compared with the previous year. A major driver of this success was the popular
online DIY gift service, which grew by 107.5%. Within this category, the Year Album
service performed exceptionally well, seeing sales rise by 187.8%. The Group intends to
focus on these areas as growth drivers in the future.

Overall, total sales for the online business increased by 51.3%. This was due to the success
of the online DIY gift service as well as a 28.3% sales increase for the online photo output
service — the latter of which was driven in part by the successful revamp of the Fotomax
website during the year, which made it more user-friendly and widened its range of online
products and services. Another successful segment was the ID photo business, which saw a
sales increase of 15% compared with the previous year.

Professional Audio-Visual Advisory and Custom Design and Installation Service

The Group’s profession audio-visual advisory and custom design and installation service
business continued to build on the experience gained from recent ventures, presenting its
audio-visual project design and installation service to other large-scale clients. During the
year, the Group engaged in active discussions with a number of hotels, schools, hospitals
and Government departments for pending projects.
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BRAND MANAGEMENT

As in the past, the Group actively promoted its FUJIFILM brand and the latest FUJIFILM
cameras and accessories. In January 2016, it released two advanced new digital cameras,
the FUJIFILM X70 and the FUJIFILM X-Pro2. Both of these models are brand-new changeable
lens digital cameras, and they continue the FUJIFILM X-series’ established reputation for
quality. The X70, which comes in black or silver, is the first digital camera in the X-series
to have a 180-degree, multi-angle, self-timing-enabled LCD touchscreen monitor. It is also
fitted with the brand-new FUJINON 18.5mm F2.8 lens, which is ideal for scenic photos,
selfies and street shots. The X-Pro2 brings another breakthrough to the X-series. It uses

a unique, advanced hybrid multi-view viewfinder equipped with the newly developed
X-Trans CMOS Il sensor and X Processor Pro image processor, and it features a structural
design that offers all-weather protection. Launched separately in January was the advanced
FUJINON XF100-400mm F4.5-5.6 R LM OIS WR lens.

As an incentive for customers to upgrade their cameras to new FUJIFILM products, the
Group introduced a camera swap service at its FUJIFILM Studio in January 2016. Customers
were invited to bring in their old single lens reflex cameras and lenses and exchange them
for new FUJIFILM products by paying the difference in price. Customers taking advantage
of this offer also enjoyed a discount of 5% off purchases of FUJIFILM interchangeable lens
cameras, camera bodies, sets, camera accessories and FUJINON lenses. In a separate
initiative, the Group encouraged customers to bring in their older FUJIFILM instant cameras
to the FUJIFILM studio or any Fotomax branch and buy an Instax mini 90 instant camera

at a discount. The Group then refurbished the older cameras and donated them to charity
organisations.
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Once again, items in the FUJIFILM range received a number of prestigious international
awards over the year, which the Group leveraged to promote sales. The new FUJIFILM
X-Pro2 and the FUJIFILM X-T10 received honours at the 2016 Technical Image Press
Association (TIPA) Awards, which is one of the most prestigious photo and imaging
awards worldwide. The former won in the ‘Best Mirrorless CSC Expert’ category and the
latter in the ‘Best Mirrorless CSC entry’ category. Each was also recognised at the Red
Dot Design Awards and the iF Design Awards in Germany, as were a number of other
FUJIFILM products.

Fotomax participated in several imaging and photography events during the year,
expanding brand awareness among various customer segments. Some of these events
were covered in the Group’s interim report, including the 2015 Peegaboo Baby Expo in
May 2015 — where the Group actively introduced the Year Album to young parents and
parents-to-be, the main target users — and a special Year Album production workshop
held in collaboration with U Magazine in September, both of which were great
successes. Also, the Fotomax Facebook fan page was widely used over the course of
the year to promote activities and special offers to fans. One very popular incentive was
the joint Facebook Photo Competition organised with U Magazine in July and August
2015, which attracted a number of new Facebook fans.

Popular cartoon characters remained a valuable way of attracting customers to use
Fotomax services and/or buy imaging gift products. Key licensed characters featured
during the year included Hello Kitty (used in promotions at Easter, over the summer
holidays and at Christmas) and various popular Disney characters, including local
favourite Tsum Tsum (in September and over the Chinese New Year period).

The Group also strengthened awareness of its ID photo service by running advertorials
targeted at those who may be unfamiliar with the offering. The Group had particular
success with its special package prices that attracted customers to purchase extra
prints.
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The ASTALIFT skincare brand, now operating as an online business, continued to forge a
niche for itself in Hong Kong’s competitive skincare market. A number of new products
enjoyed successful launches during the year that helped consolidate the brand’s appeal.
These included ASTALIFT WHITE Perfect UV Clear Solution SPF 50+ PA++++, which offers
advanced UV protection technology in a sunscreen product that is ideal for Hong Kong’s
harsh rays. In December 2015, the Group launched the newly developed ASTALIFT Pure
Collagen Drink 10000, a special product that uses only the rare ‘first extraction’ of collagen
and which contains original low molecular collagen of high quality in a high concentration
(10,000mg in a 30ml bottle). In February 2016, ASTALIFT launched a newly redesigned
website that makes shopping for ASTALIFT products easier and more convenient.

The consumer electronics and household appliances segment continued to organise several
events and promotions during the year under review to attract customers and build

brand popularity, including roadshows and trade-in programmes. Over Christmas 2015,
purchasers of selected AV Life store products might win surprise gifts that included tickets
to very popular shows and attractions such as Cirque Adrenaline, The AIA Great European
Carnival and Ocean Park. In early 2016, AV Life organised a promotional trade-in event
whereby customers trading in their old amplifiers at AV Life branches and buying selected
ONKYO amplifiers got to enjoy a 20% discount on their new purchase, plus a 50% discount
on new sets of speakers. In March 2016, AV Life hosted an AV products trade fair at Metro
City, Tseung Kwan O, featuring some of the latest high-tech TVs and related equipment.
Also in March, it hosted a new model workshop at its SOGO branch in collaboration with
Post76.com and OPPO, where it introduced the brand-new OPPOA4K Blu-ray disc player
with built-in “Darbee super resolution processing” that simulates the way human brains
process images with a computer.

OUTLOOK

Given the realities of Hong Kong’s general economic outlook for the year to come, the
Group is pragmatic about its short-term prospects for improvement. However, with prudent
management of its diverse businesses, careful analysis of trends and developments in
consumer spending habits, and a continued commitment to innovation and enhancement,
the Group is also confident that it will be able to successfully ride out these tough times
and firmly establish the Group as a robust market player over the medium and long terms.
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Although image printing volumes have fallen over the year, the imaging business still
contributes over 80% of Fotomax’s total profit. Imaging and imaging products remain
valued in Hong Kong because people recognise that photo prints are still the best way
to preserve and pass on precious personal images and family memories. Therefore, the
Group plans to continue meeting this demand, especially by focusing on enhancing its
mobile print, ID photo, Year Album and DIY personalised gift services.

Smartphones now represent the most common way of capturing and storing digital
images. However, the fact remains that images are not easily viewable on phones.
There is also the risk of losing images completely if a phone is lost, stolen or destroyed.
Therefore, the Group plans to organise Fotomax promotions designed to encourage
customers to print from their huge pools of stored images on phones and the internet.
To do this, the Group will offer free WiFi at all its shops for customers who order photo
prints from images on their mobile phones. In addition, Fotomax will be collaborating
with GP Batteries in 2016 to provide a free battery-charging service for mobile devices
at all Fotomax shops. This is also expected to attract more smartphone users into
Fotomax shops.

The Fotomax ID photo service has proved very popular. Customers are attracted by

its professional equipment, comfortable environment and skillful photographers, all of
which combine to guarantee high-quality photos that cannot be replicated by customers
on their own. The Group plans to continue enhancing this service to emphasise its
professionalism and quality, upgrading equipment and the studio environments as well
as providing new value-added services such as a ‘skin enhancer’ service, which results
in more attractive-looking images.
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Following the successful revamp of the Fotomax website last year, the Group is planning
to further modify the site in order to open up new online possibilities for users. Given the
increasing trend towards e-shopping, the Group believes that there is plenty of potential to
grow this side of its business. This could lead to manpower savings at Fotomax shops, as
well as the opportunity to inject new business ideas into freed-up floor space. For example,
since May 2016 Fotomax has collaborated with BannerSHOP to offer a range of banner-
and display-related services and products include tailor-made foam boards, vinyl banners,
Plallililsel. . ﬁm.% pull-up banners, stickers and posters. Under the partnership, Fotomax is acting as a new
distribution channel for this growing business, increasing both its product range and sales

volume in the process.

In November and December 2016, the Group’s skincare business will be launching another
B new product that should generate strong market demand: ASTALIFT Jelly Aquarysta S.
e This new product contains higher levels of nano astaxanthin than the previous version,
Magazine Advertisement and it also has a powerful moisturising effect. In addition, the Group will be upgrading
HMEES its online e-business strategies by introducing a monthly eDM promoting special offers at
the ASTALIFT online shop. The Group will also promote membership growth by offering

attractive special offers when customers sign up.

Within the electronics and household products retail business, the Group will continue to
emphasise the high-end professionalism of its various brands to differentiate it from other
players in the market. In particular, the Group will make the most of its new strategic outlet
in SOGO to draw attention to its product range and technical expertise, and continue using
innovative promotions and special offers to attract new customers.

In summary, the Group is moving ahead on multiple fronts to turn today’s weak economic
environment to its best future advantage. The Group has identified the key success and
growth drivers in each of its businesses, and the Group is looking at new ways to use
these to create additional growth in a challenging market. The year ahead is expected to
be difficult. However, we are confident that the steps we are taking will not only result in
steady performance in the months to come, but also put us in an enviable strategic position
once the economy returns to health.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group has high corporate governance standards, and it adheres to them consistently
across its businesses. The Group maintains strong, open working relationships with its
staff, customers, partners and suppliers, and regularly reviews its corporate governance oo o

practices to ensure that they continue meet the highest international standards. il

STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Given the diversification of its businesses over recent years, the Group now has staff
working in a number of distinct specialist areas, each of which requires different
competencies and skill sets. In light of this, the Group now offers a wide range of
training and development opportunities to staff across the company. Training courses
have been — or are being — developed to sharpen the key product knowledge and
business skills of staff working in different parts of the company, in order for them to
perform at the highest levels within their specific industry or sector. The Group sees this
training specialisation as an important step toward positioning some of its businesses

as leading operators in their fields in Hong Kong. For example, the AV Life brand is
establishing itself as a premium supplier of consumer electronic products and household

Sponsorship to the Community Chest
BPEBAREEDY

appliances in Hong Kong. The Group aims to ensure that staff working in this business
are not only skilled retail ambassadors, but also experts regarding technology and
products at the high end of the industry.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is involved in a wide range of cultural and social activities that complement
its primary business objectives. By organising or sponsoring photography exhibitions
and related events, the Group can contribute to the cultural richness of Hong Kong
society. It also supports a number of worthy causes as a way of giving back to the
community. The Group is a regular participant in ‘Greening for the Chest’, which has
been organised by the Community Chest for more than 25 years. This year’s ‘Greening
for the Chest’ is an educational fundraising program that aims to encourage schools
and organisations to clean and plant at designated locations in the hope of building a
greener, cleaner environment for the younger generations, while also raising funds for
the needy.
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Executive Directors’ Information

HITESER

1 EPEIZELE 2 FELE 3 BFELL
Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon Mr Liu Hui Allan Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen
BITEE BYHTEE HHITEE

Executive Director

4 FELEE
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
BIEERITEAAE
Deputy Chairman & CEO
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Independent Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, |P, aged 65, is the Chairman of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, responsible for the
overall management and strategic business development of the
Group. He joined the management team of the Group in 1976 and
has 40 years of experience in the photographic products industry.

Dr Sun is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association, Life Honorary Advisor of the Photographic Society of
Hong Kong, Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Dr Sun is the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Dr Sun holds a Bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy from the University of
Oklahoma, USA and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business
Administration from Southern California University for Professional
Studies. He is the Honorary Fellow of City University of Hong Kong
and Chapter Honoree of City University of Hong Kong Chapter of
Beta Gamma Sigma. He is the son of Mr Sun Chieh Yeh, former
Honorary Chairman and founder of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited.
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Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
E3

Chairman

EFREL
Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

BUHHITEE

Independent Non-executive Director

6 FXEELE 7 BXHEE
Mr Li Ka Fai David Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm
BYHTEE BUHTEE

Independent Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director

REELL
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen
HITEE

Executive Director
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Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 38, is the Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for
the supervision of the overall marketing and sales areas as well as
the Group’s business development. He is also the Managing Director
of Fuji Photo Products Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary companies

of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Sun has worked in Fuji
Photo Film Co. Ltd., both in Japan and the United States of America,
where he conducted marketing work for their imaging business. Mr
Sun holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Cornell University, Ithaca, New York,
USA. He is the son of Dr Sun Tai Lun, Chairman of the Group.

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen, aged 62, is an Executive Director of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited. Ms Ng joined the Group
in 1978. She has extensive finance and administrative experience
with the Group, having helped it to grow from a local Fuji products
trading company in Hong Kong in 1980s to a leading photographic
wholesale and retail distributor in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau.

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon, aged 64, is an Executive Director of
China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited. He joined the

Group in 1978 and has over 30 years’ experience in the photographic

products industry. He is responsible for the supervision of the

Corporate Resources Division of the Group. Mr Tang holds a Bachelor

of Arts degree from the University of Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada.

He is the brother-in-law of Dr Sun Tai Lun, Chairman of the Group. 21
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Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information
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Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm, aged 67. Mr Au holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering and a Master of Science
degree in Food Science both from the University of Wisconsin,

USA and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Toronto, Canada. Mr Au has over 30 years’ experience
in management. Mr Au is an independent non-executive director of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited.

Mr Li Ka Fai David, aged 61, is currently the deputy managing
partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. CPA (Practising). He is also a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and

a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, an independent non-executive director, a member of the
audit committee, a member of the nomination committee and

the chairman of the remuneration committee of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, an independent non-
executive director, a member of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited, an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee and

a member of the remuneration committee of Goldlion Holdings
Limited, an independent non-executive director and the chairman of
the audit committee of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited and an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of audit committee of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited.

Mr Liu Hui Allan, age 59, Mr Liu graduated from the Beijing
University of International Business and Economics and the
Westminster University of United Kingdom. Mr Liu has over 30 years
of experience in foreign direct investments in China, especially in the
consumer and retail sectors. He was formerly the President of The
China Retail Fund LDC, a direct investment fund he founded in 1996,
co-sponsored by American International Group. Mr Liu has also been
a partner of the private equity business of PAG, a Pan Asian asset
management group managing US$16 billion. Mr. Liu is currently
serving as advisor to various leading Chinese and international
financial services institutions focused on international acquisitions.
Mr Liu was an independent non-executive director of China Financial
Services Holdings Limited until his resignation in June 2014.

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, GBS, MBE, |P, aged 65, is the chairman
and the group chief executive officer of VTech Holdings Limited,
cofounded the Group in 1976. Dr Wong holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin and an Honorary Doctorate of
Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is the
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of Li & Fung Limited and MTR Corporation Limited.
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Non-executive Director’s Information

Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen, aged 40, joined the Fung Group in
2001. Mr Fung is the chief executive officer of Fung Kids (Management)
Limited under Fung Retailing Limited (“FRL”). Mr Fung is also a
director of FRL, a member of the Fung Group.

Apart from engaged in important positions in the Fung Group for
several years, Mr. Fung has also gained management experience

in Japan and U.S.A. In 2002 and 2003, Mr. Fung transferred to a
private equity company in New York of which was under Fung Group
USA, focusing on consumer products. Besides, in 2006 to 2008,
Mr. Fung was appointed as a reporting and portfolio management
vice president by Aetos Japan, a real estate fund in Japan. Mr. Fung
returned to the Fung Group the instant year and was appointed the
chief financial officer of Toys“R”Us Asia the following year. Until 1st
November, 2011, Mr. Fung was promoted to the chief executive
officer of Fung Kids (Management) Limited.

Mr Fung graduated from Boston College with a Bachelor of Arts
degree, and graduated from International University of Japan with a
Master of Business Administration degree.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company has committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be

in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines

by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 4 independent non-executive
directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
(Chairman and Member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr Li Ka Fai David
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr Liu Hui Allan
(Member of Audit Committee)

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member
of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Non-executive Director:
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen (Member of Audit Committee)

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section
headed “Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-executive Director’s
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”
on pages 20 to 23 of the annual report for the year ended 31 March

2016.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Executive Directors’ Information, “Non-executive Director’s
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive

Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board at all times
exceeded the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from

each of the independent non-executive directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

The non-executive director of the Company does not have a specific
term of appointment. However, all directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by relation once every three years and any
new director appointed to full a casual vacancy shall submit himself
for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr
Sun Tao Hung, Stanley, Mr Tang Kwok Tong, Simon and Mr Au Man
Chung, Malcolm shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of
the Board take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All directors have carried out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities

and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the following directors have
been provided with relevant reading material including legal and
regulatory update for their reference and studying:

Directors

Executive Directors

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm

Mr Li Ka Fai David

Mr Liu Hui Allan

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

Non-Executive Director
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration and Nomination Committees, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Board of
Directors” on pages 24 and 25.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive director and all
independent non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise) with Mr Li Ka Fai David being the Chairman of the
Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them
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To act as key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relation with the external auditors, and to be primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to consider any
questions of their resignation or dismissal

To review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31 March
2016 and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope

of work and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without
the presence of the Executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm (Chairman of the Committee), Mr Li Ka
Fai David, Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy

To make recommendations on the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management

To review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management for the year under
review.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review the remuneration
policy and structure and determine the annual remuneration packages
of the executive directors and the senior management and other
related matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, established in April 2012, comprises
four members, namely Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the
Committee), Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm, Mr Li Ka Fai David and
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are independent non-
executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes

To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors

To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors

To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for directors

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of

the independent non-executive directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/RETRE
Other
Annual General
Nomination Remuneration Audit General Meetings
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting (if any)
ES HitlRR
EEpR Name of Director BExg REZEE FMZEEE BERKZEEE BERE X&g(WAH)
BAfmEL Sun Tai Lun Dennis 4/4 1/1 /1 N/A RER /1 N/A TEA
BmELEE Sun Tao Hung Stanley 4/4  N/ATEA  NATER NATER /1 N/A TiEH
BEREE Tang Kwok Tong Simon 4/4  N/ATEA  NATER NATER /1 N/A TiEH
SEELZL Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 44 N/ATBR  NATER NATEAR /1 NATER
B Au Man Chung Malcolm 3/4 1/1 1/1 2/2 /1 N/A TER
TRE Li Ka Fai David 44 N/AFTEA  NATER 2/2 /1 N/A TEA
2 Liu Hui Allan 44 N/AFTEA  NATER 2/2 0/1  N/A A
BEFM Wong Chi Yun Allan 3/4 0/1 0/1 2/2 0/t N/A TNiEH
B2 Fung Yue Chun Stephen 344 NATER NATEAR 2/2 0/t N/A RNiEH
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 51 to 52.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board regarding
the selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditors in respect of
audit services is HK$1,980,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

Please also refer to the “Risk Management” in this Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Special general meetings may be convened by the directors on
requisition of shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders
may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco
Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company

Secretary)
Fax: 24090294
Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meetings, directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. An up to date version of the Company’s
Bye-laws is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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Our Group is involved in a fast-developing industry, where technology
is constantly changing and new trends spread rapidly. We have
therefore developed a risk management strategy aimed at addressing
the most significant of the business risks that the Group is exposed to.

For operational risks in business areas such as the photography,
photofinishing and retail electronic products markets, the Group
clearly determines its risk preference and risk tolerance, and prepares
risk management reports and holds risk management meetings on a
regular basis to conduct analysis and review on its countermeasures
for significant risks and their implementation. To facilitate its
sustainable, steady and sound development, the Company will
continue to strengthen risk assessment, identify potential risks in
advance, and enhance its risk prevention standards and capabilities.

CONSUMER HABIT AND TECHNOLOGY TREND IN DIGITAL
PHOTOGRAPHY MARKET

According to market study conducted by industrial researcher,

the digital photography market over the world shall has a small
single digit annual growth in this year. However, the market
situation in Hong Kong may not be the same as in the world. We
expect continuous keen market competition in digital camera and
photographic products in Hong Kong. On the other hand, the
consumer habit in using smartphone to take pictures instead of
using digital cameras, is adversely impact to the demand of digital
cameras. The Group realize that risk and opportunity always co-
exist, we continue strengthen our position within digital photography
markets by product differentiation and create a niche market within
the digital camera segment.

SHRINKING MARKET IN PHOTOFINISHING

Despite the continuous growth in digital photography market,
traditional photofinishing market is shrinking since digital cameras
become popular. Consumers take more pictures but print less in
terms of photo-paper. People changed their life-style to share
pictures in internet social media instead of sharing physical photo
image products in person. We are adopting the change in consumer
habit and life-style, we launched different photo image products
to stimulate their demand on photo image products. And we also
continue to invest on e-commerce and m-commerce platforms to
improve our connection with existing and potential customers.

WEAK IN DOMESTIC CONSUMPTION

Key parts of the economy remain weak and consumers are hardly
spending, we suffered from significant drop in domestic consumption
as the same as other retailers in Hong Kong. Fortunately, we followed
our risk management strategy not to over-expand our retail business
in past few years, therefore, we reduced our pressure in cutting
operating expenses. However, high rental cost is always an operating
issue for most of the retailers in Hong Kong, we managed this risk by
constantly review the performance of individual outlet, and regular
relocations where necessary to optimize revenue.

MANAGING INTERNAL EFFICIENCY

The Board oversees the Group’s internal control system, which

has been set up to provide a comprehensive range of checks and
balances on all aspects of the Group’s decision-making and spending.
Each segment of the Group is required to prepare an annual budget
every year for submission to the management and the Board of
Directors for approval. Across its operations, the Group has adopted
the standards and control frameworks outlined by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Regular reviews of the internal control system are carried out by the
Board. For the year ended 31 March, 2016, the Board is satisfied with
the effectiveness of the internal control systems currently in place.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR - HEREBRE

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group has chosen to report on a voluntary basis adopting
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as a standard, and this report is the
second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG®) report of the
Group released to the public.

The Board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, but the task of compiling the
report has been delegated to the management and their teams.

The Group engaged in various retail and distribution business
operations, of which the sales of photographic products, consumer
electronic and household appliances, and the provision of
photofinishing and technical services in Hong Kong, are in the
opinion of the Board, most significant to the Group’s business
performance as well as the impact to various ESG aspects. This ESG
Report shall focus on these business segments, unless specified.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Aspect Al: Emissions

The Group has self-owned commercial vehicles to deliver goods to
our retail shops and customers, these vehicles generated emissions
to air includes NOx, SOx and other pollutants. The Group has
established operational procedures to efficiently operate the company
vehicles to minimize emissions to air. The Group always maintain
company vehicles according to regulation requirements and we will
regularly replace our diesel commercial vehicles to comply with latest
emission standards and regulations.

The Group is aware of the impact of greenhouse gas emissions
in the world as well as from our business operations, the source
of greenhouse gas emissions by us are direct emission from

our company vehicles and indirect emission through electricity
consumption.

Our business operations do not discharge significant pollutants
directly to water, however, we will continuous aware of the impact
by our business from time to time.

The Group has strict waste management procedures in place,

which help to reduce the potential adverse impact of its business
operations on the environment. With the continuous development

of the business of Fotomax, the volume of chemical waste discharge
from photofinishing services may increase. In view of this, the

Group collects the chemical waste (CP-48HV) discharged from
photofinishing machines with special plastic buckets and delivers it to
professional chemical waste collectors certified by the Environmental
Protection Department for processing. In addition, the headquarter in
Tsuen Wan also collects wastes (such as photographic paper, paper,
metal foil, fluorescent tubes, photocopier cartridges and batteries)
generated by day-to-day operations and delivers them to professional
environmental protection agencies for further processing, so as to
screen suitable materials for recycling and transport the residual
wastes to landfills for disposal. The Group reviews the process
chemical waste disposal on a regular basis, and keeps exploring
innovative technologies that can improve the chemical composition
of its products to achieve the goal of “waste reduction at source”.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Energy conservation is also vital to environmental protection. In order
to allow the air-conditioning systems to achieve the highest energy
efficiency, a constant room temperature of 25°C is maintained in the
offices in summer, and is monitored by thermostats to ensure that
the settings of all air-conditioning systems are the same. In addition
to switching to efficient energy-saving lighting and purchasing
equipment with power saving features, the Group has also developed
energy conservation guidelines specifically to remind the staff to turn
off the lights, computers and air-conditioners and other equipment
before leaving the office, and to encourage employees to switch all
electrical appliances and equipment to power saving mode during
lunch break or tea break. In addition, the Group will monitor its
overall power consumption and review its energy conservation
measures on a regular basis to enhance the efficiency of energy
conservation.

Our business operations do not consume significant amount of water,
the major water consumption is general office usage. We are aware
of scarcity of water resources and we educate our employees to save
water.

The Group has been in support of the calls of environmental
protection groups, and adheres to the 4R principle, i.e. Reduce,
Reuse, Replace and Recycle, in order to make the best use of
resources to achieve the goals of conserving energy and saving
electricity.

In terms of conservation of resources, the Group uses plain paper fax
machines across the board, which are more environmentally friendly,
and filters junk fax via online electronic fax function to reduce paper
consumption. In addition to recycling envelopes and file jackets,

our offices place trays beside photocopiers for collecting single
sided used paper for reuse before disposing for recycling. Double-
sided photocopying is set as the default mode for all photocopiers,
and recycled paper is used for photocopying. These initiatives do
not only help in avoiding paper wastage, but also reduce logging
for paper manufacturing. Moreover, the Group also encourages the
use of email, electronic fax or electronic bulletin boards for inter-
departmental communication to save paper.

Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources

As a sizeable enterprise encompassing photofinishing services and
photographic equipment retail segment, the Group is well aware that
environmental protection initiatives are of paramount importance for
sustainable development. Therefore, the Group has all along been
treasuring environmental resources, in particular quality photographic
paper resources on which the business of the Group relies. While
expanding the scale of its operations, the Group is also committed
to striking a balance between business expansion and environmental
conservation at the same time in its pursuit to boost the value of the
Group under the premise of reducing the environmental load.
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Employees by gender and age group
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Aspect B1: Employment

The Group established company policies and procedures relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare which comply with applicable laws
and regulations.

The Group adheres to the principles of fairness and justice in its
recruitment, training, assignment of responsibilities and remuneration
system. All employees will be treated equally regardless of their
gender, age, religion, ethnicity, political stance and marital status.

In addition to the basic rights stipulated in the labour legislation in
Hong Kong, all female employees of the Group can enjoy full pay
maternity leave, and will not be discriminated against or slighted
due to pregnancy, while all male employees can enjoy five days

of paid paternity leave to allow them to take care of their wives

and newborn babies. As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total

of 541 employees, with a male to female ratio of 56:44. Over the
years, the Group has been actively recruiting talents and sparing

no effort to enhance its competitiveness, so as to stand out in the
industry featured by keen competition. In this connection, the Group
has formulated open and transparent Procedures for Recruitment to
flexibly select ideal recruitment channels that are suitable for specific
job positions and natures, including accepting employee referrals,
placing advertisements and commissioning recruitment agencies to
identify professionals. Applicants will be screened based on certain
criteria including work experiences, academic qualifications and
professional skills to ensure that the capability of the candidates meet
the requirements of the Company.

Employees by employment type and age group
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The Group has developed a performance appraisal and evaluation
mechanism to assess employee performance based on key
performance indicators (“KPIs”), and provides discretionary bonus
and other incentives based on the evaluation results. In addition, the
Group has a sound promotion system in place under which priority
will be given to qualified existing employees when considering
promotion if internal vacancies arise, so as to ensure that employees
can share the achievements of the Company. The Human Resources
Department will collect comments from employees on a regular basis
and forward them to the management for review, through which a
better understanding of the needs of the employees and an improved
employer-employee relationship can be achieved.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

To ensure that employees enjoy the benefits of a clean workplace,
the Group has formulated a smoke-free policy in accordance with the
law, and actively promotes a smoke-free culture by holding health
talks to encourage employees to quit smoking and take exercise,

so as to care about the physical and mental health of employees

in a holistic manner. In addition, the Group engages a professional
cleaning company to conduct annual thorough sanitation and cleanup
of the stores and offices in all districts, including cleaning carpets,
dust filters of air-conditioners and fan blades, to create a comfortable
quality workplace.

We care our employees and we provide safe working environment
to our employees. There was no work-related fatal, and there was
only 4 cases of work related injury and we suffered total of 24 lost
working days from these cases in this year.
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Group believes that a team with profound knowledge of the
industry and applicable professional skills can help boost its corporate
brand image and competitiveness. In this connection, the Group

has set up a scholarship scheme to encourage employees to pursue
continuing education and enroll in work-related courses to obtain
professional certificates and achieve self-enhancement. In addition to
engaging professionals to provide occupational training, the Group
also assigns employees to participate in activities including external
training, industry seminars and product launches if necessary to help
employees enhance their professional skills and acquire knowledge of
innovative technology, while gaining relevant work experience at the
same time. To improve employee performance, the Group provides
special training based on the needs of individual positions to ensure
that the skills and knowledge of its employees meet the standards of
the Company.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group is aware of the relevant laws and regulations relating

to preventing child and forced labour, while the Group has yet to
formulate specific policies to prevent the employment of child labour
or forced labour, the Procedures for Recruitment has prescribed that
the recruitment of minors under the age of 18 is strictly prohibited.
The Group may consider formulating other relevant recruitment
guidelines in the future in light of its business development and
market changes.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

From day-to-day operations of its stores to supply chain management,
the Group always upholds the principle of environmental protection
to ensure that each stage of the work process complies with legal
requirements and industrial guidelines. When purchasing office
supplies and equipment, the Group accords top priority to products
which are environmentally friendly, such as furniture made from
chipboards, photocopiers and printers with energy efficiency labels
affixed, recyclable laser printer cartridges, and environmentally
friendly stationery such as recycled paper document folders,
propelling pencils, refillable pens and pencils made from recycled
materials. In addition to placing recycling bins to collect waste paper,
metal and plastic materials, the Group also raises the awareness of
its employees on environmental protection through training and
seminars, demonstrating our commitment in fostering a green culture
at all levels within the Company.

Fuji Photo Products Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, mainly
purchases photographic products such as photofinishing and
processing equipment, cameras and films from Fujifilm Japan

while Fujifilm Japan has always placed emphasis on environmental
protection, and continues to review the chemical composition of
products and develops innovative technologies to provide consumers
with quality photographic products that are more environmentally
friendly.

In addition, the Group only purchases paper from Forest Stewardship
Council (FCS) certified suppliers for its Fotomax business to ensure
the quality of the paper complies with international environmental
protection standards. Moreover, in an effort to promote environment
protection among consumers, refills are available for certain products
of the skincare segment. The consumer electrical household
appliances segment delivers all electronic parts with hazardous
substances to professional recycling service providers before disposal
for further processing to avoid causing damage to the environment.
As an award recipient of Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) granted by the U.S. Green Building Council, the
Group’s custom design and installation services adopt advanced
international standards as the criteria for measuring environmental
protection performance.

The Group holds supply chain management in high regard and strives
to select quality suppliers through an open and transparent screening
process to achieve mutual benefits. Under the same conditions,
priority will be given to suppliers who stick to standard management
practices and actively fulfil their social responsibility. In addition,

all suppliers must provide their company background and product
information for supervision and inspection by the Group. The Group
also reviews and assesses the performance of suppliers annually to
decide whether to continue cooperating with them, and such reviews
are also be taken into consideration when identifying other suppliers.

Suppliers of the Group are mainly from Japan and South Korea.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

The Group believes that the backbone of a corporate’s reputation

is the quality of its products and services. Therefore, guided by the
management principles of honesty and integrity, the Group performs
product quality management in strict compliance with the laws,
regulations and relevant standards in the countries and regions where
the Group operates. Firstly, the Group provides suppliers with market
updates and customer feedbacks through regular meetings, urging
them to improve the quality of the products according to the latest
market demand. Secondly, all suppliers must offer internationally
recognised safety certificates to prove that their products have
fulfilled international safety standards. In addition, the Group’s
repairs, maintenance and quality testing services are all in line with
the relevant international standards. The Group has established a set
of product and service complaint criteria stipulating that the value

of the products associated with complaints shall not exceed 0.03%
of the total turnover of the respective product category. For the year
ended 31 March 2016, no request for product recalls due to safety
and health issues has been received by the Group.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group embraces the value of integrity and adopts zero tolerance
to corruption in its daily operation, dedicating itself to enforce

due punishment when necessary and to build a comprehensive
corruption prevention system. To create a corporate culture of

high integrity and self-discipline, the audit committee collaborates
closely with the supervisory committee to strengthen supervision
and inspection measures, deepen anti-corruption education and
devise an anonymous report system coupled with timely follow-
up measures and investigation procedures. The Group encourages
employees to lodge complaints, and maintains strict confidentiality
of the complainants. The Group conducts immediate investigation
procedures upon receiving complaints. If the case is found to be
substantiated, the Group will take disciplinary actions against the
violator accordingly or the case will be referred to law enforcement
agencies.

In general, all employees are required to complete the Declaration

of Conflict of Interests under the Group’s mechanism of active
declaration of interest. It is the Group’s belief that fair play, honesty
and integrity are commercial assets of paramount importance. All
employees must therefore make it their responsibility to prevent the
Group’s reputation from being adversely affected by fraud, malpractice
and corruption. To prevent employees from breaching Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance or being involved in bribery, blackmailing, fraud
and money laundering activities, the human resources department
has formulated the Code of Conduct on Acceptance of Advantage,
setting forth the ethical standards that every employee is expected to
meet, rules governing the acceptance of advantage when performing
official duties and policies on the declaration of conflicts of interest,
serving as a set of behavioral principles for employees.
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Aspect B8: Community Investment

Adhering to the principle of “Caring for the Community, Giving Back
to Society,” the Group, inheriting the charitable spirit from the Sun
family who founded the Group, has long been committed to play an
active role in fostering Hong Kong’s community charity development.
Positioning itself at the forefront of local community services, the
Group has been a regular supporter of a wide range of charitable
events organised by the Community Chest. Besides making donations
to The Community Chest, the Group also cares other community
groups in need such as sponsoring the 7th JEMS Charity Carnival
organised by JEMS, Junior Excellent Members of Society and the fund
raised shall be benefited to HOPE worldwide which helps the low
income families in Sham Shui Po. In 2015/16, the Group donated
over HK$800 thousands to several charity organizations to help
various social groups in needs.

During the year, the Group continued to contribute to and participate
in Greening for the Chest, a campaign organised by The Community
Chest, encouraging the management team and other employees to
join hands in cleaning and greening designated areas and promoting
awareness of environmental protection, with a view to creating a
clean and green environment for the younger generation. In 2015/16,
the programme brought together over 40,000 students from more
than 400 schools to take parts in building a greener and cleaner
environment for Hong Kong, and they raised funds over HK$5 million
for children and youth services supported by the Community Chest.
Furthermore, the Group encourages our employees to participate in
various charity and community events, our management formed a
golf team to participate in The Community Chest BEA Charity Golf
Day 2016.

As a member of the community, the wellbeing of the elderly is one
of our primary concerns. Starting from June 2014, holders of Senior
Citizen Card can enjoy a 20% discount for photo printing, digital
imaging and professional photo processing services at Fotomax.
Moreover, we organised internship program with the Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education (IVE) to let their students to practise
in our business operations and we also donated scholarship to
student of IVE.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is principally
involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of photographic
developing, processing and printing products and sale of
photographic merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances; and (ii) the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing products,
professional audio-visual advisory and custom design and installation
service. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the period under review. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were approximately HK$261 million with a
zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of HK$63 million were recorded
as at 31 March 2016, while inventories were HK$ 158 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had 541 employees (2015: 505), remunerated largely
based on industry practice, including provident funds, insurance

and medical benefits. The Group also adopted a discretionary bonus
programme determined annually based upon the performance of the
Group and the employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 123.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2015: HK1 cent
per ordinary share). The Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not
recommend any final dividend for the year subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements,
is set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31 March
HZE3IAIBLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ RESULTS BETT BT BETFT BT BETx
& Revenue 886,668 966,658 861,669 475,629 436,448
AATEEAEEZ (Loss)/profit for the year
FE (E?i%)/fﬁ?ﬂ attributable to owners of
the Company (70,480)  (33,289) 15,469 32,565 44,687




As at 31 March

M3H31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EE  -AffR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEiERRiER NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BETRT BT B¥Trx BY¥Trx BYETx
MmEE Total assets 806,648 872,785 969,919 955373 996,306
wmas Total liabilities 137,275 133,630 160,936 110,601  (114,948)
EEFE Net assets 669,373 739,155 808,983 844,772 881,358
JEIERER Non-controlling interests (1,064) 552 (228) - -
668,309 739,707 808,755 844,772 881,358
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment
properties are set out on page 124.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year. Details of the Company’s share
capital is set out in note 25.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve
account of HK$490,378,000 and HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$894,051.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 10.42% and 3.48% of the
Group'’s total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 75.72% and 30.69% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm

Mr Li Ka Fai David

Mr Liu Hui Allan

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

Non-executive director:
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen

In accordance with Bye-law 110 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr
Sun Tao Hung, Stanley, Mr Tang Kwok Tong, Simon and Mr Au Man
Chung, Malcolm will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive directors, and as at the date of
this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 20 to 23 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following directors for the provision of management services by these
directors to the Group:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon
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Each service contract has a remaining unexpired term of 12 months
as at 31 March 2016 and is subject to the termination by either party
upon giving three months’ notice to the other party.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

ELFHBRETE : Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest
FEROHE - BORERNTE

Directly Percentage of the

beneficially Founder Beneficiary Interest Company'’s issued

Name of director Note owned of a trust of a trust of spouse Total share capital

EARRE

=E73 5% SBITREZ

EENE i = BRERE FEABA Z#@mA [AEL BEt Bo

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) - (iii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 220,000 712,496,214 60.11
BR®EL

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iv) & (v) — - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01
BEL L

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 250,000 - - - 250,000 0.02
REFELZL

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon 1,142,000 - - - 1,142,000 0.10
HEREE

Mr Fung Yue Chun (vi) - — 70,000,000 — 70,000,000 5.90
Stephen
BREE
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HEEERGRERBKRNZHE - Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporations:
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number of nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company Shares shares held interest capital
50K 1EEEEET
EENE HEEEERE HALFER RO FEROHE REME BTRAZEDL
Dr Sun Tai Lun Searich Group ~ Company’s Ordinary shares 25 Beneficiary 25
Dennis Limited immediate (note (i) of a trust
BAfmEL holding
company
ApBlzEE  EBROEEEW) FREzEmA
ZRRE
—ditto— —ditto— Ordinary shares 75 Founder 75
(note (ii)) of a trust
Eilia Gl IR (P 5L (i) ERERIPA
100 100
Dr Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 103,000,000 Founder 100
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (ii)) of a trust
BAfmEL holding
company
RRB2&E  HBRGEEG) ERERIFEA
ZRNE
i & Note:

(ii)

BAMEIRRESHEFARQR 11,242,000
BB zERE ZEROVE-—BREBELER
BE& M Z A FDago CorporationHEFH °
Dago Corporation#Trident Trust Company (B.V.1.)
Limited (EBRRBRBELIRARKRER =
Mk 2 H1E 155 The Dennis Family TrustZ 35t
ANB13)Fi#% ° Dago Corporation7i & Searich
Group Limited 2 21T IR Zx25% °

MR &KX @18 L RThe Sun Family TrustZ &l
A #ZfE7EHBFine Products Limited 2 2302 8
TRA  MZEKGELER A% AFine Products
Limited fT#%5 5 2 700,034,214 A 1 &) R 1 2 #
# ° Searich Group Limited Z B 1T IR 75%H
Fine Products Limited$$7% ° Fine Products Limited
K Searich Group Limited fT# AN A A 2 & Rl7F
BRTXEEZERRREMBEARRKRD RIEERD 2
ERRKE -8 -

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of 11,242,000
shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation, which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned by Trident
Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis
Family Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of Dr Sun Tai
Lun Dennis and his family members. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of

the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited.

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214 shares
in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being the
founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital
of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group
Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interest of Fine
Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found
in the section “Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and

short positions in shares and underlying shares” below.
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B BFE MK L 2D A Dago Corporation B E
& ° Dago Corporation#&Trident Trust Company
(B.V.L) Limited ({fFRRXRBEAME L RARIKAK
B(BERELEE)NEMRY 2B EFEEThe
Dennis Family TrustZZ7EA &) Fi##H ° Dago
Corporation7F#5E Searich Group Limited 2 21T
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(v) B A 854 5L 4 R The Sun Family TrustZ 3 i
A #5735 EFine Products Limited 2 202 %
TRA - WIRELL K EWR B HFine Products
Limited ¥ %8 2 700,034,214 R & 1 7] IR 17 2 #E
# © Searich Group LimitedZ B 21T A 75%HH
Fine Products Limited#57%5 ° Fine Products Limited
K Searich Group Limited T4 A R = 2 E R 5F
RTXFZRERAMEARRGD RAERERKRG Z
FERRKE |8 °

(vi) HRBMEAER —HERFTEZZTHEA » HSBC
Trustees (C.I.) Limited{EEZEENZTEA » HUS
R4 WAR BPEAHSBC Trustees (C.1.) Limited
#58 270,000,000 A~ A B Iz 10 Z #E & ° HSBC
Trustees (C.I) Limited iR QAT EZZERFR
TXEERR KR EAMEARBD R AEEAR G5 2 5
mRAA I -
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(iii) Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 220,000 shares of the
Company through the interests of his spouse, Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty who

inherited the said shares from her mother's legacy in 2014.

(iv) Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total of
11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation,
which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned
by Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its capacity as the trustee of
The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family members including Mr Sun Tao Hung
Stanley. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share capital of

Searich Group Limited.

(v) Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214 shares

in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being the
beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued share
capital of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich
Group Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interest of
Fine Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be
found in the section “Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests

and short positions in shares and underlying shares” below.

(vi) Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in 70,000,000
shares of the Company held by HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited by virtue of
him being a beneficiary of a trust of which HSBC Trustees (C.1.) Limited
act as trustee. Details of the interest of HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited in the
Company can be found in the Section “Substantial Shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”

below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the directors
of the Company and their associates had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
part XV of SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such

rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

to Section 336 of the SFO:

At 31 March 2016, the following interests and short positions in the
shares and the underlying shares of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled to

exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at

any general meeting of the Company:

Percentage of the

Capacity and Number of ordinary Company'’s issued
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
R NS
BREREE B RERME BEEBRER i ERITRAZADLL
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis Beneficial owner 1,000,000
BAfmEL BEREEA
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000
BEREZEREA
Founder of a trust 700,034,214
EFERIPEA
Interest of spouse 220,000
[Tt E s
712,496,214 60.11
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06
of a controlled corporation
BaEm ARZELERER
Searich Group Limited Beneficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 50.62
EREBA
Trident Trust Company Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 60.01
(B.V.L) Limited SREA
Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty Beneficial owner 220,000 0.02
BERLZL BaEEA
Interest of spouse 712,276,214 (i) & (iii) 60.09
B fBrER
712,496,214 60.11
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01
BiBsLEE FERZHEA
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen Beneficiary of a trust 70,000,000 (v), (vii) 5.90

BT E

fEREEHA

& (viii)




FERRRRAMBARRGREAMKOGZER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

R%E(E) INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)
HihFERRZHE Long positions of other substantial shareholders:
Percentage of the
Capacity and Number of ordinary Company'’s issued
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
(eS|
RERAE S RkiERME BEEBEREE FiEE ERITRAZADLL
Mr Fung Kwok Lun William Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (v) & (vii) 5.90
BEmEE FELAEER
Fung Retailing Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000 - 5.90
BREEEERRAR ERBEFA
Fung Holdings (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 — 5.90
IBERIER (1937)BRAA FELAEER
King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 - 5.90
BimERBR AT FELAEER
HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited Trustee 70,000,000 (vi) & (vii) 5.90
SREA

MEE

)

(iii)

(iv)

100,000,000 F R (EA DT EBHTRH 2
8.44%) HFine Products Limited E##H 4T
2600,034,2 1483 I 3 FHSearich Group Limited#
& » MFine Products Limited BB Z AR 2 %
1TB&Z<75% ° Fine Products Limited & — A &
BERELZESTMAILZAT » I ATrident Trust
Company (B.V.L.) LimitedbAThe Sun Family Trust
EEAGDRES -

ZERDCAFEERAREL ZBEZA -

HARLZTWRAEBEBRAGEL ZREM
HE712,276, 214K DA R M 2 ©

BESL A BREH 5 BThe Sun Family Trust&
The Dennis Family TrustZ 3@ ABIRBHEEEH
711,276, 214ARAE AR RD 2 fes o

Note:

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

100,000,000 shares representing 8.44% of the Company’s shares in
issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining
600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which
Fine Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine
Products Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is owned by Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its

capacity as the trustee of The Sun Family Trust.

Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr Sun Tai Lun

Dennis.

Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214
shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr Sun Tai

Lun Dennis.

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total
of 711,276,214 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a
beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust and The Dennis Family Trust.
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Report of the Directors EEEIRE

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BMEEERER S S —BHHSBC Trustees (C.I.)
Limited EAFTEANETIZZI R AREREETS
$£70,000,000/ A~ A B IR 17 2 2= o

BEmEEZRBEIER - RIIZELEAMES
B NERSEEEERAT  BRIER(1937)
BRADREHERERA R (HSEBEERESE
50%) ©

HSBC Trustee (C.l1.) Limited Z %5 J53E B — %2 5l
TEEZEmMESE  DERZEEEFRIA -
BERER(1937)ERAAREHERERA A
(FBHSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited & 50%) ©

3B (v) B2 (vi) FT 35 B 4 55 £ 'R HSBC Trustee
(C.1) Limited 2 #E & 18R —#t AR A TR D ©

B EXFIEES » M2016F3A318 » BRALQT
EEMNEEZERNESRBORBERG 2 ESE
R#KAE|—8)  BEEALAERQ TR RAAE
BOPEEERIREMARBEZ ZRBEKRGIZE
3361 1EHFTEE ©

ERORGKRE
READTLHITES2ERNRBESHAN - RAE
BEBHMARALBELARRACRTRALERD

25% °

574 10

ERARAFFEFEHBRREHZHUMBIRAKE
ELES e

BERKBSTMEEMIENERERRBF KSR

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in a total of
70,000,000 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary
of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited act as trsutee.

The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned
by Mr Fung Kwok Lun William).

The interests of HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned
by HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited).

The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William and HSBC Trustee (C.1.)
Limited as mentioned in the above notes (v) and (vi) refer to the same
block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no person, other

than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in

the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and

underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s

total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this

report.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited

by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer

FUEERERESEZER -

RERESS

PN
EE

BE
2016F6H23H

50

themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2016
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To The Shareholders of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

and its subsidiaries set out on pages 53 to 123, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZHENRE (&)

FE Y RATEFUAERERREMBHRRAES
BERRBEER 2 FBRE - MEENREFBORRZ
HEW A - BEFEERRFRERMEHGE
BB RFEEANBRRAN RS - EFFEZER
by REMEEEZARDRBEEMTENEGS
B HRMEENAIMES - URFEENETRE
o BENALEAHATABEFNEREERE
R B S EENEESARASTRENGES
REEHEFHEFNEEY  URTEREUHRR
HERTIHS R -

HMEE  BMFAESHNENSREZRNES 1
AERMNFTERIEMHER -

R

BMPRE  ZEREUBRRECREBBUBER
HENEEMASHRR SATRAKMBLTAR
20163 A3 1 AN BER AR BEEBEZBLEE
WHBRERBRSRE » WEEREB(QTEH)

BERKES RS
e E =]

&8 » 20165FE6H23H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a

true and fair view of the financial position of the Company

and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HaE BETT BET T
gz Revenue 886,668 966,658
SHER AR Cost of sales (685,563) (746,612)
A AR Gross profit 201,105 220,046
Hp AR iz Other income and gains 6 12,481 12,177
RENELNFEEE Changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 13,966 7,532
HERDHER Selling and distribution costs 7 (136,829) (136,170)
BERTHERRY Advertising and marketing expenses 7 (21,722) (29,853)
THREX Administrative expenses 7 (76,890) (68,676)
EEREZRE Impairment of goodwill and trademarks 15 (57,810) (35,878)
HEEER Operating loss (65,699) (30,822)
B —EEE N T %S Share of results of an associate (147) (625)
CE=20) i) Loss before income tax (65,846) (31,447)
PR Income tax expense 10 (3,018) (2,377)
REEEIE Loss for the year (68,864) (33,824)
(BB)/#HEER (Loss)/profit attributable to:
RATHEEA Owners of the Company (70,480) (33,289)
FERER Non-controlling interests 1,616 (535)
(68,864) (33,824)
KEEARNTHEE AN Loss per share attributable to owners
BREE of the Company for the year 12
HAR Basic (HK5.95 cents 7&{ll) (HK2.81 cents /&1lli)
e Diluted (HK5.95 cents 7&l) (HK2.81 cents )

FC0R123EZMEBASHEUKRARNWELEI  The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these

N

o e

consolidated financial statements.
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mETHEZER Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BZE2016F3A31HILEEFE For the year ended 31 March 2016
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
REERE Loss for the year (68,864) (33,824)
Hih 2 HEEE - Other comprehensive loss:
HREEF 7 2 15 2 TH H Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss
BEEIINETSE L ER Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (918) (200)
AEEHME2EER Other comprehensive loss for the year (918) (200)
AEELHEEEHARE Total comprehensive loss for the year (69,782) (34,024)
BEER Attributable to:
RATEB A Owners of the Company (71,398) (33,489)
FEIEpRRE S Non-controlling interests 1,616 (535)
(69,782) (34,024)

FCO0R123EZMEBASHEUKIRARNWELEL  The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these

7 e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2016

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E BT T BT
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 13 74,717 83,189
REYE Investment properties 14 190,785 177,185
e Goodwill 15 = 44,207
BE Trademarks 115 - 14,388
R—EBRE ARz ER Interest in an associate 17 - _
®e Deposits 20 12,687 13,894
EEFIBEEE Deferred tax assets 24 183 293
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 278,372 333,156
RENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 158,002 196,675
25 rEWERE Trade receivables 19 63,034 37,073
FEUN — BB A T FE Amount due from an associate 17 10,169 -
FENRE - ZER Prepayments, deposits and
H fth fE Ui BR 18 other receivables 20 35,605 35,668
] Uk [B] 18 Tax recoverable 765 21
RERBITHEER Cash and bank balances 21 260,701 270,192
REEELRE Total current assets 528,276 539,629
HEE Total assets 806,648 872,785
i EQUITY
AAREEABGEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
R Share capital 25 118,532 118,532
#H1E Reserves 26 549,777 621,175
668,309 739,707
IR Non-controlling interests 1,064 (552)
B Total equity 669,373 739,155
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As at 31 March 2016

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iiEs BT T BT T
a& LIABILITIES
FERBAME Non-current liabilities
FEstEE Accrued liabilities 23 4,685 5,773
EERIBEE & Deferred tax liabilities 24 25,276 23,721
FRBEEREE Total non-current liabilities 29,961 29,494
REEE Current liabilities
EoEMNERERERE Trade and bills payable 22 45,774 43,016
e BN EMEERE Accrued liabilities and other payables 23 53,051 52,161
FERiE Tax payable 8,489 8,959
TESEALE Total current liabilities 107,314 104,136
BEEE Total liabilities 137,275 133,630
EnREEEE Total equity and liabilities 806,648 872,785

E53EZ123EMM KRR EN2016F6H23H %
BSESgHE > WIRERTIESARES !

- PN )
+E
Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Chairman

EOR123HZMERZSRAMBHMRNERES

7 e

The financial statements on pages 53 to 123 were approved by

the Board of Directors on 23 June 2016 and were signed on its

behalf.

=N

BIEERITEARE

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.



mEEREHR
HZ2016%F3A31HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016

ADNRREARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Share Capital  Exchange Asset Proposed Non-
Share  premium redemption fluctuation revaluation  Retained final controlling Total
pital  account'  reserve!  reserve!  reserve'  eamings'  dividends Total interests equity
Rt &1EE EERy EEER RE  RRRE FER B&
& EER i ! e byl k& ozt B& a5
Note HK'000  HK'000 ~ HK'000  HK000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000
Wi EMTn  E¥Tn BBTR BMTn  BMTn  E¥Tn  E#Tn BETR BT E¥Tn
R2014F47 1 BER Balance at 1 April 2014 118532 490,378 1,619 2,980 25387 146,153 23,706 808,755 228 808983
KEEER Loss for the year - - - - - (33289) - (33289) (535)  (33,824)
A2 EFE Other comprehensive loss:
BERNERERZE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - (200) - - - (200) - (200)
EFEAR Total comprehensive loss - - - (200) - (33289) - (33489) (535 (34,024)
Ef014ERBRE 2014 final dividend paid i - - - - - - (118%3)  (11.8%3) - (11853
Bf014ERBERIRE 2014 final special dividend paid i - - - - - - (118%3)  (11.853) - (11853
Ef015ERHARE 2015 interim dividend paid 1 - - - - - (183 - (118%3) - (11853
BE0EZRE Dividends relating to 2014 - - - - - - - - (245) (245)
ERMVERBIZAAT  Total transactions with owners of the
REARREER Company, recognised directly in equity - - - - - (11853 (23706 (35559) (245)  (35,804)
R201553A318 % Balance at 31 March 2015
201548 1B and 1 April 2015 118532 490,378 1,619 2,780 25387 101,011 - 739,707 (552) 739,155
REE(58B)/BF (Loss)/profit for the year - - - - - (70,480) - (70,480) 1616 (68,864)
Eth2EEE: Other comprehensive loss:
BERNMERERZE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - (918) - - - (918) - (918)
2 (58R)/ WALE Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (918) - (70480) - (71,399 1,616 (69,782)
R2016E3A31 AL Balance at 31 March 2016 118532 490,378 1,619 1,862 25,387 30,531 - 668,309 1,064 669,373

t HWEREREERGESVBRARZGEHESRY
549,777,000t (20154 : #&#621,175,0007T) °

F0ZE 123 BT AZEREMBERERNEE

I o

7

1

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$549,777,000 (2015: HK$621,175,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these
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HZ2016F3A31HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
gz BT T BT T
REEBCHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
RSB Al 18 Loss before income tax (65,846) (31,447)
BT : Adjustments for:
FEWA Interest income 6 (2,234) (3.107)
M - BER Depreciation of property,

REZTE plant and equipment 19,711 19,567
EAZ Amortisation of trademarks 785 785
M - BREREREZRE Impairment of property,

plant and equipment 7 - 175
HEWE - KE Losses on disposals of property,

KRB EE plant and equipment 62 154
FERE Provision for inventories 2,492 682
B 5 EWERTE (Write-back of provision)/provision

(Bfsmag) ORERE for impairment of trade receivables 7, 19 (78) 78
FEfh — B D B FEE Share of results of an associate 147 625
BREVMEDNFEEE Changes in fair value of

investment properties 14 (13,966) (7,532)
BENKEERE Impairment of goodwill and trademarks 15 57,810 35,878
(1,117) 15,858
SEESHEE Changes in working capital
FEZRL (&) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 36,181 (33,400)
BB EWERIEZ (2h0) F (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (25,037) 15,061
®e -  BARER Decrease in deposits, prepayments
H b pE U BRIE 2R and other receivables 1,270 1,975
BEZRMNRER Increase/(decrease) in trade
EE 2 GRd) and bills payable 2,758 (17,578)
EitEER Decrease in accrued liabilities
H e BRIE 2R and other payables (61) (8,636)
KEERE (A BRE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 13,994 (26,720)
BEBFEHER Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 478
2AEBFIEHR Hong Kong profits tax paid (2,102) (3,926)
28 E Overseas taxes paid (270) (164)
Fed—E 3 97is =y Net cash generated from/(used)
(FrA)IREFRE in operating activities 11,622 (30,332)
REZTHZ2HEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEUFIE Interest received 2,234 3,107
BAYE BERRE Purchases of property, plant
and equipment 13 (12,160) (25,260)
BAREYE Purchases of investment properties 14 - (1,000)
HEYE  BER Proceeds from disposals of property,
BIBPTEFIR plant and equipment 42 5
FREFABEB=EA =2 (Increase)/decrease in non-pledged time
IR 1R E HA1F K deposits with original maturity of
(#hn),/md> more than three months 21 (105,991) 65,801
MRE — R E AT XNHIRE Cash paid for the investment in an associate (147) =
) — R E & A R R B Advances to an associate (10,169) (500)
REES(FTA) /g Net cash (used in)/generated
HEFHEE from investing activities (126,191) 42,153



SO EREIFR () Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

B ZE2016F3831HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2016
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
gz BT T BT T
METEZ2RHER Cash flows from financing activities
EFRE Dividends paid = (35,559)
XN TFHERERZRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - (245)
BMEEE AR S FEE Net cash used in financing activities - (35,804)
ReRBELEEERZ Net decrease in cash
WA R and cash equivalents (114,569) (23,983)
FHESRRESEEEE Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 257,663 281,740
ReRBReLEEERAZ Exchange losses on cash
E R Ea and cash equivalents (913) (94)
FRASRBESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 142,181 257,663

FOOZE123E 2T RZERE M HERRMEREI  The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these

I o

7 consolidated financial statements.
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 8/F,
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road, Tsuen
Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of
photographic developing, processing and printing products
and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances;
and (ii) the provision of technical services for photographic
developing and processing products, professional audio-
visual advisory and custom design and installation service.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Searich Group Limited and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited. Both of the holding companies are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015, unless otherwise stated.



A ISR EBM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 BRtBRRER S 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

AREBERAFE2GRETMBBRREXNIRAT The Group has adopted the following new and revised

SIFEI MG 2B BT AR EBIBHR HKASs and HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

HEER o consolidated financial statements.

FEBGEST S 2010F 220125 Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements
BEAFESE 2010 — 2012 Cycle

FEHBERE 20115 £20135F Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements
BEAFESE 2011 — 2013 Cycle

B2 EL REBAGFE : HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined Benefit Plans:

1955 (1&5]) EE MR Employee Contributions

R E R MEIERT 2 BB ST ERE S The adoption of the above new and revised HKASs and

B RS RS ME R AR EE [ 2 2 A % B SR R 3 HKFRSs does not have significant impact on the Group’s

BEAFE  FAERARER 2STBRUR 4 results and financial positions nor any substantial change in

EHBHMRZEVIEEFEMERES the Group’s accounting policies, and presentations of the

consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKASs and HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements

Project

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

HKEFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements
2012 — 2014 Cycle
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Financial Instruments

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2018
Effective date

not yet been
determined

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs
upon initial application and is not yet in a position to state

whether these new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs have any

significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and

financial position.
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622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial year, as a result,
there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e #E) (@) Consolidation (Continued)
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Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability

is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in the
consolidated income statment or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable

net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised

gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value

at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries

is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and

50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss

is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

and its share of post-acquisition movements in

other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When

the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of results of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

Profits or losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate

are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the steering committee that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the
income statement within “administrative expenses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed

for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land 5% or over the remaining
lease terms

20% to 33 1/3%

and buildings
Furniture, fixtures and
leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The asset’s useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

3(f).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “selling and distribution costs and
administrative expenses” in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement within “changes in fair
value of investment properties”.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property

is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment” (note
3(g).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

®

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUSs,

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical
cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment
losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated
useful lives of 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

G

(k)

Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that

are settled or expected to be settled more than

12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade and
other receivables, cash and bank balances in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

(ii) Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not

be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

o

(m)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence

of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade, bills and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recongised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on

the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset

or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the

reversal of the temporary difference is controlled

by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only
where there is an agreement in place that gives

the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of

revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable

that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;

and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group’s activities, as described below.

(@)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(®)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) from the provision of film processing, photofinishing
services, professional audio-visual advisory and
custom design and installation service, and technical
services for photographic developing and processing
products, when the services have been rendered;

(c) interest income, recognise using the effective
interest method; and

(d) rental income, on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Other employee benefits

Prepaid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period

is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme under

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

and a defined contribution occupational retirement
scheme (the “ORSO scheme”) under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the schemes. The assets
of both schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The Group’s
employer contributions to both schemes vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the schemes,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions
to the ORSO scheme, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the ORSO scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

(v) Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks where
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are
charged to the consolidated income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(w) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
(or leased out separately under finance leases), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)
(a) Judgements (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using

an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level

of impairment, including the discount rates or

the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

(b) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(i)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active
market for similar properties, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition, location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices;
and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(i) Estimation of fair value of investment properties

(Continued)

(c) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by
external evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows. The
principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation
of the fair value include those related to current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, appropriate discount
rates, expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs. The carrying amount of
investment properties at 31 March 2016 was
HK$190,785,000 (2015: HK$177,185,000).

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and

trademarks

In determining the useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment and trademarks, the Group

has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of
the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is
based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation or amortisation is made if the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
trademarks are different from previous estimation.
Useful lives are reviewed at each reporting period
based on changes in circumstances.
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4 EXErtHERR &5 E) 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of goodwill

(b) fEEHFHABAER (&)
(iii) 2 BiE
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(iv)

The Group determines whether a goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the CGU and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or
the discount rate applied will result in an adjustment
to the estimated impairment provision previously
made. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31

March 2016 was HK$Nil (2015: HK$44,207,000).
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
made a provision for impairment of goodwill of
HK$44,207,000 (2015: HK$35,878,000). Further
details of impairment testing of goodwill are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all trademarks at the end of
each reporting period. Trademarks are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of

the trademarks exceeds its recoverable amount
calculated by value in use method. Management
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
trademarks and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of trademarks at 31
March 2016 was HK$Nil (2015: HK$14,388,000).
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
made a provision for impairment of trademarks of
HK$13,603,000 (2015: HK$N:il).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 EXErtHERR &5 E) 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets (other than

(b) fEEHFHABAER (&)
v) HEEEAERE(FEREEZERI))

REBRSHMERRTFEAEFEH
EERAEMRENR - EANRE
R BRTE (B R 24 7 YR BB - TR AR08
FERMEERADRE BEERR
SEABVNRAESRETHREE
BNEERIRETELEVNAFE
HEERAREEREERENRS
FE)ESHRBE - A FEBRHEER
AW ENERKSATFEFTBEAENR
INEREEHERZNEE - A
BEMERLEEENELRAE © &
HEREER  EEEAMTEER
REELBUNAGRRESRE
TEASENERERFEZERDR
BWHE -

(vi) EEFIREE

BEERBEEDREFERERY
¥ BERRBINEMEEZMAER
BABREER TR T8
MR - EZH AR ERBURFIAT
PRV S B 18 I AT 08 2 R 1 = 5
ATEA - EEERREARRERK
w2 T RE R )R K PR B B
SRR - REE T TR ZELER
HEESREHERME - E—2F
RN S BRI 24 -

(vii) TFERZE

REEERFEEFE RS HBR AR
B - AEERBREPRAREEF @ I
B RFHEFETREE - EHE
EFRERMEFTARREERTRMETF
ENARRFE o st I2RFE
ERTEH - BIRgEEEEREA -

(vi)

goodwill and trademarks)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value

of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions

in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs

for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising
from impairment on inventories and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(vii) Provision for inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories
have been suffered from any impairment. The Group
carries out an inventory review at the end of the
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow moving items. The management estimates
the net realisable value for the inventories primarily
on the estimated future selling price and market
conditions. Where the estimates of the net realisable
value are less than expected, a material allowance
may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing
and printing products and the sale of photographic
merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances;

(b) the service segment engages in the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing
products, professional audio-visual advisory and custom
design and installation service;

(c) the investment segment comprises the Group’s
businesses in investment properties; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s corporate income and expense items and other
investment businesses.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group has been
identified as the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
monitors the results of its operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which
is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax except

that interest income and share of results of an associate are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
cash and bank balances, interest in an associate and other
unallocated corporate assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a
mark-up of approximately 14.65% to 28.95% (2015: 23.2%
to 32.0%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a ®ERE (a) Operating segments
Corporate
Merchandise Service Investment and Others Eliminations  Consolidated
ERHE R r& ERHAM i RS
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETTL BETR BNTR BATR BMTR ANTR BMTR EETR BNTR AT ERTR HMFR
AElE Segment revenue:
PREEZHE  Sales to external customers 727,867 832,437 158,801 134,221 - - - - - - 886,668 966,658
PEEZHE Intersegment sales 29,126 32065 = 3240 3285 - - - - (32,366) (35350) - -
Ht AR Y& Other income and gains 5,312 3,952 - - 13862 15683 104 5718 ~ (5,075 (3.611) 24213 16,602
@t Total 162,315 868454 162,041 137506 23,862 15,683 104 578 (31,441) (38,961) 910,881 983,260
PERF/ (BB Segment profit/(loss) (11,365) (183) =~ 2919 (37,693 15310 10,777 ~ (8,7191) (6,830) - - (67,933) (33,929)
FIEMA Interest income 2,34 3107
fefh—mEe Share of results
NGES: of an associate (147 (625)
BRITERAEE  Loss before income tax (65,886)  (31,447)
FrEhE% Income tax expense (3,018 (2377
EEEE Loss for the year (68,864)  (33,824)
Merchandise Service Investment Corporate and Others Consolidated
EmHE AR5 BE tERHEAM HFHARE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BTn BETn BMTn BMTn AT BMTr AT BMTn AT BETr
BEREER Assets and liabilities
28EE Segment assets 263325 344,697 38,356 20858 187,828 175838 55490 60886 544,999 602,279
KOBEE Unallocated assets 261,649 270,506
BEE Total assets 806,648 872,785
PEER Segment liabilities 16,425 72,556 10,350 9,564 10,652 10,547 6,083 8283 103,510 100,950
*EER Unallocated liabilities 33,765 32,680
BaE Total liabilities 137,215 133,630
Eft2%BER:  Other segment information:
& (HE7) Depreciation (note 7) 8500 8308 6483 638 - - L A4m8 4875 19711 19567
BRER(Ff13) Capital expenditure ' (note 13) 924 21757  L16 2863 - = 170 640 | 12,060 25260
BERBHEHE  Impaiment of goodwill and trademarks
(HfzE15) (note 15) 57,810 - - 35878 - - - - 51810 35878
REMEFNTE  Changes in fair value of investment
2E(WzE4)  properties (note 14) - - - - (13,966)  (7.532) - - (13966) (7532
BERE(H37)  Provision for inventories (note 7) 2,491 682 - - - - - -1 682

1

EAMAXBERENE - BERRE °

1

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) MEFE (b) Geographical information

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

REIIARF 2 W= Revenue from external customers

B Hong Kong 883,476 966,109
FREARSEMEA(THE]) People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) 3,192 549
886,668 966,658

Fai S ER R R B AL R E

The revenue information above is based on the location

2% o in which the Group operates.
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T

FRBEE Non-current assets

BB Hong Kong 157,777 215,044
AR PRC 120,412 117,819
278,189 332,863

FHFRBEEER HEREEREML
& BTERELEHBREE -

() FR—RBEEEFRZHEH
W 75 FP 4978 #530,897,0007T ( 20154 - &
#537,438,0007C) NEMMEED BEET
BE-EFMELZHERE -

6 Wz Rttt ARMI
W RENANEE B R - R HEERZ B
FFE(CHRERERTNEE)  Ra)REE
FRATHERRMARYE EXFTEETR

The non-current assets information above is based on the

location of assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$30,897,000 (2015:
HK$37,438,000) was derived from sales by the
merchandise segment to a single customer.

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
(i) the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts; and (ii) income from the

RETRZEBRBZWA

rendering of technical services for photographic developing
and processing products, professional audio-visual advisory

Wi~ WA RWSE 22T ¢

and custom design and installation service.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
& Revenue
EmEE Sale of goods 727,867 832,437
RRTE 2 YA Income from the rendering of services 158,801 134,221
886,668 966,658
H g A & Uz Other income and gains
RITERZFIEUWA Interest income on bank deposits 2,234 3,107
HEWABE(Mf5FE14(a)) Gross rental income (note 14(a)) 7,388 7,228
Hith Others 2,859 1,842

12,481 12,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E S WA 7 EXPENSES BY NATURE
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
it 5 BET T BET T
HEFERA Cost of inventories sold 598,183 675,934
RS R AR Cost of services provided 53,500 39,205
2 Gl A Auditor’s remuneration

ENZIRTS Audit services 1,602 1,456

EFZRTS Non-audit services 537 535
- - BEK Depreciation of property,

RiE2ITE plant and equipment 13 19,711 19,567
- - BEK Impairment of property,

BB ZEE plant and equipment 13 = 175
BiEE s Amortisation of trademarks 15 785 785
BERmGHERRX Advertising and marketing expenses 19,125 27,844
RIELEA SR Minimum lease payments

T REFZAATH under operating leases on land

REEEMIE and buildings 62,952 61,036
HEVE BER Losses on disposals of property,

RiEZEE plant and equipment 62 154
FERE Provision for inventories 2,492 682
5 EWRERTE (Write-back of provision)/provision

(BEER) RERE for impairment of trade receivables (78) 78
EEREXER Legal and professional fee 1,383 2,152
EERAEX Employee benefit expense 8 107,963 105,497
ENERE  FHE Foreign exchange differences, net 349 (1,369)
Hith Others 52,438 47,580
SHERA - HER Total cost of sales, selling and

DHER - BER distribution costs, advertising and

MiGHERXR marketing expenses and

THREXZ &5 administrative expenses 921,004 981,311
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EREFIAXZ(BEEFHE) 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
IERHSE Wages and salaries 102,318 101,740
BRINERA — REMFEETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 4,409 4,424

ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ Provision/(write-back of provision)
(BB EE) for long service payments 1,236 (667)
107,963 105,497

Fiz Note:

0 48 2% W ALK AT A AR HR AR SR B AR 2R 5 2 R AT 9

B ©

FEBERHETERESESESEAREHUGTE - ZZ
STEAEEETRAERE - RIEBEESARAZE
FEDEAEHER - TRRERBUTEFRIZE LS
EDMARARARENESERBERABREE - IR
EHERI  AEERBRRENEEE - PNHEER
fE °

AEETHEREBNEERREHNTE - BE
sTEIFR BRI AR S BURG) (RE SR )
MHREZEAER - ARERAFBRESHERRE
RERGIATET HIZE SRR A R Z 5% EREEE
HE - SHANEERFKENEEDNREE - 1B

VER o

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans for its
employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments based on certain percentage
of the relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans and the Group has no further constructive obligation for

post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which
is managed by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group and its employees in
Hong Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% of each
individual’s relevant income or a limited amount as prescribed by the
MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from

those of the Group and independently administered.



A ISR EBM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 stuREFHFMAL 9 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
FR5ESHHNEESBIEAL(20155F @ 411) The five highest paid employees during the year included four
BE  HFMFHEBEEARANHEIZHE - £ (2015: four) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set
HER (20155 @ 1) kESRBESFHMES out in note 33. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
ZEHBFEBWT ¢ one (2015: one) non-Director, highest paid employee for the

year were as follows:

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
e RoE Salaries and allowances 1,896 1,899
BIRE A — REMFETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 18 18
1,914 1,917
HeWAETIHEBE 2 EERESTMES The non-Director, highest paid employee’s remuneration fell
ABIT within the following band:
Number of employees
EEAH
2016 2015
AT T BT T
71,000,001 7T HK$1,000,001
Z#8%2,000,0007T to HK$2,000,000 1 1
10 FRigiRBA 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
EFENEHBEEREETBEMELZ (5T ERR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
smAl o EFLER16.5% (20155 : 16.5%) 5T 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
B o REEFEERBRANRBRAEEL arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on profits
EEBMBERTHRETE o assessable for the year in the PRC has been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the location in which the Group
operates.
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
EHRE B8 Current tax — Hong Kong
FAFR Charge for the year 642 3,165
EEBERE Over provision in prior years (503) (594)
EHBIE - Current tax — PRC
FAFR Charge for the year 1,081 817
EEBERE Over provision in prior years ~ (227)
1,220 3,161
IEFEDLIE (FfFE24) Deferred tax (note 24) 1,798 (784)
FriEfimx Income tax expense 3,018 2,377
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

consolidated entities as follows:

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits/(losses) of the

Hong Kong PRC Total
&8 FE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T
20165 2016
BRETSBATEF(B518)  Profit/(loss) before income tax (73,083) 7,237 (65,846)
EERE Statutory tax rate 16.5% 25%
REERRTEZHIE Tax at the statutory tax rate (12,059) 1,809 (10,250)
BMBEFERIEZFHE Adjustments in respect of prior years (503) = (503)
RHFUA Income not subject to tax (1,611) (112) (1,723)
AR % Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 11,501 933 12,434
ARERIELERIEEE Tax losses for which no deferred tax
ZBEEE asset was recognised 3,305 = 3,305
KB RTER Utilisation of previously
ZBEEE unrecognised tax losses (245) - (245)
FIER X Tax charge 388 2,630 3,018
20155 2015
BRATSHAIEE Loss before income tax (30,994) (453) (31,447)
EERE Statutory tax rate 16.5% 25%
BEEREGTE 28 Tax at the statutory tax rate (5,114) (113) (5,227)
MBEFEHE 2R Adjustments in respect of prior years (594) (227) (821)
FHEBIUA Income not subject to tax (2,744) (371) (3,115)
A% 2 Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7,874 618 8,492
RERELEHBERE Tax losses for which no deferred tax
ZBIEEE asset was recognised 3,371 - 3,371
IRSHIBERTER Utilisation of previously
ZBIEEE unrecognised tax losses (323) - (323)
FIERX (ER) Tax charge/(credit) 2,470 (93) 2,377
B2 11 DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
hH -SREBRE Interim — HK$Nil (2015: HK1 cent)
(20155 : B 14L) per ordinary share - 11,853
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

(b)

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
BB Loss
ARGTESREREIE Loss attributable to owners of
ZARREEBA the Company, used in the basic
(LB loss per share calculation (70,480) (33,289)
Number of shares
RHEE
2016 2015
R A5 Shares
ARGTESREREEZ  Weighted average number of ordinary
FREBTEBERZ shares in issue during the year used in
InfESE I the basic earnings per share calculation 1,185,318,349 1,185,318,349
SREEER (b) Diluted loss per share

HRAREBEREE2016F%2015F3 831
BIEFEWRERTEEHETER > &
WARZEFELI2ERERNEEEL
EEAE o

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those
years.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Machinery
land and leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
&
HELH £ER s
kT HEWEEE k&t "E Foh
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BET T BETT BET T BT T
R2015F4 818 At 1 April 2015
AR Cost 84,383 84,888 74,256 7,264 250,791
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
RAE and impairment (31,291) (67,374) (62,498) (6,439) (167,602)
REFE Net book amount 53,092 17,514 11,758 825 83,189
BZ20165% Year ended 31
3A31ALEE March 2016
FOREFE Opening net book amount 53,092 17,514 11,758 825 83,189
2m Additions = 10,578 789 793 12,160
HE Disposals - (104) - - (104)
mEMx (HE7) Depreciation charge (note 7) (4,098) (13,801) (1,561) (251) (19,711)
[E R A% Exchange realignment (680) (3) (134) - (817)
ERREEE Closing net book amount 48,314 14,184 10,852 1,367 74,717
R2016F3H31H At 31 March 2016
AR Cost 83,628 90,413 73,332 6,798 254,171
It E Accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment (35,314) (76,229) (62,480) (5,431) (179,454)
BRERE Net book amount 48,314 14,184 10,852 1,367 74,717
R2014F4 818 At 1 April 2014
B Cost 84,430 74,404 69,229 6,452 234,515
ZitE Accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment (27,025) (61,214) (62,176) (6,223) (156,638)
REFE Net book amount 57,405 13,190 7,053 229 71,877
#HZ2015%3H Year ended 31
3S1BLEFE March 2015
FYREFE Opening net book amount 57,405 13,190 7,053 229 77,877
2 Additions = 18,694 5,752 814 25,260
HE Disposals = (159) = = (159)
A (EE7) Impairment (note 7) = (175) = = (175)
WERX (KE7) Depreciation charge (note 7) (4,266) (14,036) (1,047) (218) (19,567)
[E 5 R Exchange realignment (47) - - - (47)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 53,092 17,514 11,758 825 83,189
R2015%3H31H At 31 March 2015
B Cost 84,383 84,888 74,256 7,264 250,791
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
RAE and impairment (31,291) (67,374) (62,498) (6,439) (167,602)
REFE Net book amount 53,092 17,514 11,758 825 83,189
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13 M%¥ - BEREMW(E)

M2016F3A318 » UAFEZHEL HRE
FERERESB%21,519,5107T (20154 :
75 #524,239,0007T) » EREF BT AR
SEEzHETHREFER - AREBEENS
TS TRET SR T bR EFT ZEEE D
B MIRBEEBEHEANFI1 7R 2B - 236
HEEHAHEL HREFZHER  KEY
¥ BERRE AEEHHZHEIHKE
FIINRES - WREFHENES o

FTER X 8% 1,312,000t (20154 : B #E
1,502,000t ) ~ %% 10,405,0007T (20154 :
7% 10,583,000t ) K B #7,994,0007T (2015
G B ¥7,482,0007w) 2 2 Bl 5T Al $8 & 5K
N THERDHER IRIMTHERS ] -

BZE2015F3A31HILEFE » B THENHE
EE&ERIE - RMERIEEY 175,000TEFTA
[HERDIFEM ] BE2016F3A31 HIEF
E - BEHREMERERRE -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Included in the Group’s leasehold land and buildings are
leasehold land and buildings situated in the PRC with an
aggregate net book amount of HK$21,519,510 (2015:
HK$24,239,000) as at 31 March 2016 and are held under
medium term leases. As the related prepaid land lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of leasehold land and buildings as property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the provisions of HKAS
17. The remaining leasehold land and buildings of the Group
are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term
leases.

Depreciation expense of HK$1,312,000 (2015:
HK$1,502,000) has been charged in “cost of sales”,
HK$10,405,000 (2015: HK$10,583,000) has been charged
in “selling and distribution costs”, and HK$7,994,000 (2015:
HK$7,482,000) in “administrative expenses”.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, certain leasehold
improvement had been impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$175,000 had been charged to “selling and distribution
costs“. No leasehold improvement has been impaired for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

14 REME 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
RATFEFE At fair value

FHEER Opening balance 177,185 168,720
-yl Additions - 1,000
NP ERE 2 W3 FEE Net gain from fair value adjustment 13,966 7,532
(R Exchange realignment (366) (67)
FREER Closing balance 190,785 177,185

AEECREMEEUTFHHEOEE The Group’s investment properties are held under the

following lease terms:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
NABEBZFHBELNYZE' Medium term leases in the Hong Kong! 88,450 80,700
VRAFREzPHIFELAYZE'  Medium term leases in the PRC! 95,135 89,635
NAPEZREAELNYZE" Long term leases in the PRC! 7,200 6,850
190,785 177,185

' HRHENFEN F20FE50F  MERBEIF
HIRIRBIBS0EF o

! Medium term leases are for period ranging from 20 to 50 years

while long term leases are for period over 50 years.
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(@)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BREMERRSHRIZEH (@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment
properties
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt = BT T BB T
HEWMABE Gross rental income 6 7,388 7,228
BREVFAS 2 REYE  Direct expenses (including repairs
EEZEHERX and maintenance) arising on
(BEHERRE) rental-earning investment properties (1,540) (1,356)
5,848 5,872

M2016F3A31H » AEBWEECFLE

REBRBZARREERREEE(20155F :
&) -

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2015: HK$NIl).

[EEBR (b) Fair value hierarchy
{H{EEI T & 1T (Chung, Chan & Associates) An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
ERAEBZRENFETHEILGE - U properties was performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan &
EEREWEN2016FEKX2015F3H31H Associates, to determine the fair value of the investment
HNAFE - EEEETAGEBRERIKR properties as at 31 March 2016 and 2015. The
EMELTEZY A - TREAHIRMKE revaluation gains or losses are included in “changes in
FEEDPHNBEAFLEINR2EREYHED fair value of investment properties” in the consolidated
o income statement. The following table analyses the
investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation
method.
Fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs
FRAERTIHERAETENAFE
(Level 3) (Level 3)
(5834%) (5834%)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
KREMNTEHZ Recurring fair value measurements
REWE Investment properties:
- IXEFEN-BS — Industrial building units — Hong Kong 88,450 80,700
—HERAEEN—HE - Commercial office units — PRC 102,335 96,485
190,785 177,185

FEENHRRENEHELNEMHRIER
ESRLE BRI D PEERZRE 2B
MR - FRNAEME IH - F2RRE3R
ZEWER -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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7

DT EBR(E)
THREIIEZE20165F K 2015F3 8318 1k
FE > FRAEATABRGABTELTF

March 2016 and 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table presents the changes in investment
properties with fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) for the years ended 31

BE20165F3A31HILLFE
PRC Hong Kong Total
il =8 Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
F &R Opening balance 96,485 80,700 177,185
AFEFHZEZWEZFEE  Net gain from fair value adjustment 6,216 7,750 13,966
0 AR Exchange realignment (366) = (366)
FRERR Closing balance 102,335 88,450 190,785
FRBRE (FTA Total gain for the year included in
maEEk the consolidated income statement,
[REYEATFE under “changes in fair value of
28 1n) investment properties” 6,216 71,750 13,966
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZE201553A31HILFE
PRC Hong Kong Total
Gl =8 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
FHEERR Opening balance 97,430 71,290 168,720
bl Additions - 1,000 1,000
DNEERAEZ Net (loss)/gain from fair value
(F518) W= $5 adjustment (878) 8,410 7,532
[ SRR Exchange realignment (67) = (67)
FREER Closing balance 96,485 80,700 177,185
ilﬁ%@(%?ﬁ)/”ﬂé Total (loss)/gain for the year
GtAGREBRE included in the consolidated
[IREYEAFE income statement,
28 ) under “changes in fair value of
investment properties” (878) 8,410 7,532
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14 BEYMEE)

(c)

FREMGEBRE
AEBZREVERBIZXSERM
{E R #7247 (Chung, Chan & Associates)
(fEEMEEHEERTEEXER I
HAGENRENEN B MNEESE
MHAARER ) M 2016 F3A31 HEH G E
% 7B % 190,785,000 7t (2015 F : B ¥
177,185,0007T) ° & TREMECIRKEE
HEZHBFE=F @  HBEEZFHBEEH
RERE SRR FE27() ©

REE I BIRE B WERB LA
BEMELNGEE  TEEOFERERE
EHE EBLERKE - MBBREL
fhEMESNREERERER -

SN EHEM B EFER

REBILGERSENMEERE A
& ;

ik FFEEGERSTEMELES
g,k

B2 fhERVEITR® ©

EFREERRE - MBEBRBLEEER
BEHEAMHAEIRDFEZEELR DN o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c) Valuation process of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$190,785,000 (2015: HK$177,185,000) as at 31
March 2016 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The finance department reports
directly to the chief operating decision-maker.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the chief operating decision-maker, finance
department and the independent valuer on a regular
basis.

At each financial year end the finance department:

Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting
date between the chief operating decision-maker, finance
team and the independent valuer.
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(d)

B &R R MIEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H{ERE (d)
RHAEAX T A BEHA BB L -FE

REBMREMEN D FE-RUBAE
(MEERATHEEHABEE @ W5t R
HPEWRENERARUZEESFHE
B RBEAHEANMRENGETEZER - Z

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are
generally determined using the income approach which
largely uses observable inputs and taking into account
the significant adjustment on term yield to account for

ZB A0 ERig ABEEHE : the risk upon reversionary and the estimation in vacancy
rate after expiry of current lease. These significant
unobservable inputs include:

Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2016 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
2016534318 FUERHA FABREGAE
e ZATE(BETR) EERE TBEHAE (EEE BATEZEE
Industrial building 88,450 Income approach Rental value HK$7.1 - HK$11.5 The higher the rental
units — Hong Kong method per month value, the higher
per square feet the fair value
IXBTEN-FE WA HEEE BRE¥AR HEEEES
BEIITE DFEHS
BE 15T
Yield rate 2.88% — 5.35% The higher the yield rate,
the lower the fair value
WaE 2.88%%5.35% hEEdS - ATESE
Commercial office units - PRC 102,335 Income approach Rental value Renminbi (“RMB”) 6.4 - The higher the rental
method RMB100.4 per month  value, the higher
per square meter the fair value
BERLZEN - TE BAE HEEE BRSTHAARE  HEEEES
(AR%64nZ DVEHS
AR#100.47C
Yield rate 0.98% - 3.55% The higher the yield rate,
the lower the fair value
WaE 0.98%%3.55% hEEdS - ATERE

o7
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14 BEYMEE)
(d) SEFEGE)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d) Valuation techniques (Continued)

Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2015  Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$°000)  Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
®2015%3A31H TUBEHAE
EE ZOPEBMTR) {hERE FUREHAE FUBRBAEZEE  RAVEZME
Industrial building 80,700  Income approach Rental value HK$6.1 - HK$10.5 The higher the rental
units — Hong Kong method per month value, the higher
per square feet the fair value
IXRTEM-FE LN HEEE SREYAR HEEELS
BH6ITE NVERS
810,57
Yield rate 2.9% - 5.24% The higher the yield
rate, the lower
the fair value
BaEx 2.9%ZE5.24% BERHE -
DFEEE
Commercial office units — PRC 96,485  Income approach Rental value Renminbi (“RMB”) The higher the rental
method 6.1 - RMB100.4 value, the higher
per month the fair value
per square meter
BERLEEN - FE WA HEEE BRETHRARE HEEELS
[AR% 6.1xE NVEES
AR 100470
Yield rate 0.93% — 4.00% The higher the yield
rate, the lower the
fair value
BaEx 0.93%Z4.00% BERHE -
DFEEE
HEFEERTEST o ol AG There were no changes to the valuation techniques

HEZEFEER -

during the year. There are inter-relationships between

unobservable inputs.
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15 HERER 15 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS
Goodwill Trademarks Total
mE 5 g
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
B ZE2016%F3A31HLEE  Year ended 31 March 2016
FHEREFE Opening net book amount 44,207 14,388 58,595
HEEE A (MaE7) Amortisation charge (note 7) - (785) (785)
W{EE R Impairment charge (44,207) (13,603) (57,810)
FREEFE Closing net book amount = - —
R2016F3A31H At 31 March 2016
BRAR Cost 80,085 15,700 95,785
EitEERREE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (80,085) (15,700) (95,785)
REFE Net book amount - - —
HZ201553HA31HIEFEE  Year ended 31 March 2015
FREFE Opening net book amount 80,085 15,173 95,258
BB R (faE7) Amortisation charge (note 7) — (785) (785)
REER Impairment charge (35,878) - (35,878)
FREEZEE Closing net book amount 44,207 14,388 58,595
R2015§3A31H At 31 March 2015
RS Cost 80,085 15,700 95,785
T RRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (35,878) (1,312) (37,190)
BREHRE Net book amount 44,207 14,388 58,595
Fi5E Note:
(i) L %EBME785,0007T (20154 : B#785,000 (i)  Amortisation of HK$785,000 (2015: HK$785,000) is included in

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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15 HERERE)
[ #e4i-El s
BEEIREZREBEXEBIBEINAEERS
EEEBN -

TREARXE D ENHESBEER

15 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to operating segments.

The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each
operating segment.

Provision
Year ended 31 March 2016 Opening for impairment Closing
BZE20165F3A31HLFE F4 RERE FR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
HEBSTEMNRIAEEE Retail, wholesale and related services
ZE - MER of consumer electronic products and
e BE AR 7% 2 7% (I EED) household appliances operations (note b) 44,207 (44,207) =
Provision
Year ended 31 March 2015 Opening for impairment Closing
BZE2015F3A31HILEFE F1) RS FR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
BEARREN AR 245 (MidzEa) Photofinishing services operation (note a) 35,878 (35,878) =
HBETFEMR Retail, wholesale and related services
RAEBRTE « #it# of consumer electronic products and
N HERE RS E7% (KiaEb)  household appliances operations (note b) 44,207 - 44,207
80,085 (35,878) 44,207
Ff=E Note:

(@) BRARERBREELEM

BT REER R SELESE N 2T IRESEE
RBRERAEETEMEE  REUFATNESS
ZRAHESEMNESERERmAE 2t F 58
BE&REFAE - BE2015F3831ALEFEE
ReRedilERAZmRER11.0% c BiBLF
HeReREaDERASIBRERE] -

HRAEEBAT R BREEEENRE
R EEEBREAQADESHENSBHREAS
RETEA > REZE2015F 3831 HILFERAEF
OREH*BREELBNFLZEEHERERE
7A#535,878,0007T ©

(a) Photofinishing services operation CGU

The recoverable amount of the photofinishing services operation
CGU was determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections approved by the Company’s Directors
covering a period of seven years with reference to the expected
useful lives of the photo developing machineries. The discount
rate applied to cash flow projections was 11.0% for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and cash flows beyond the seven-year
period were extrapolated using a zero growth rate.

Due to the unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s
photofinishing services operation CGU, management made a

full provision for impairment of the goodwill of HK$35,878,000
during the year ended 31 March 2015 based on the revised cash

flow projections approved by the Company’s Directors.
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15 BERGEE) 15 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS (Continued)

EEERENS(E)
MicE - ()

(b) FHEEFERRFZABHRZTE - HBRABRY
REELEN

HEBETEMRIASHETE « B RMEERE
ReEEENZARESENRBEAEENE
MEE @ RIBUEATNESSEHESTERR
SAEREBENEEATHMAEZRFHE
SHREBAUTE - BREREVUBAZINRES
13.0% (2015%F : 13.0%) - BBHEFHZEER
ENRASIBRERA -

HRAEEHEETERRIAESRTE « L3
REBREREELEVFARRARE  EEE
RIEAQATNESHENSERRESTERA -
MEZE2016F3A31 B LFEREEZEEHERE
BE 44,207,000t R BB R R ER BB
13,603,0007C °©

M2016F3H831HK2015F3H31H » LR
PELBNZFEREETERA T EEM/ME °
TXHAEEERRSREFEUMKEZEE
ZREFE o BUETRERERR

HERGNAE - DR EREHEREFRE
ZEEDRETFHEREREN 2 XESFS
tE - WEREMATRRBAMEHAEE -

EXHX-ARRAESREEEHERFA QTR
AKFRFFERRNERE REBEEELSFHX °

FRE-RAZTRAZDHRABZE » R
REFREMAREZSERE

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(b) Retail, wholesale and related services of consumer electronic

products and household appliances operations CGU

The recoverable amount of the retail, wholesale and related
services of consumer electronic products and household
appliances operation CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections approved
by the Company’s Directors covering a period of five years with
reference to the expected life cycle of the business of consumer
electronic products and household appliances. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 13.0% (2015: 13.0%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a

zero growth rate.

Due to the unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s retail,
wholesale and related services of consumer electronic products
and household appliances operations CGU during the year,
management has made a full provision for impairment of the
goodwill of HK$44,207,000 and the related trademarks of
HK$13,603,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016 based on
the revised cash flow projections approved by the Company’s

Directors.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the above CGUs as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Sales and gross profit — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted sales and gross profit is the
composition between previous year’s budget and the actual
results achieved, adjusting for any shortfall or gain.

Capital expenditure — The Company’s Directors determined
the capital expenditures based on business strategies devised
for both maintaining the Company’s level of generating
revenue and its continual growth.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 SUBSIDIARIES

M2016F3A31 B2 EEMBLARFRAT ¢

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are

as follows:

Issued ordinary

Percentage of equity

attributable to the

Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital Company place of operation
AR/ R KRS
£ RERERNEE ERTEBRRA BRAEZADIE FEXEBRERME
Direct  Indirect
EE-S
Callas Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% Property holding in Hong Kong
liability company
EEFREARAT BE  BREELT ERRBELT REBUSNESA
China-Hongkong Photo Retail British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
HERAZERRAF RERLEHE  AREMLT EBRIXT REBUSREZER
China-Hongkong Graphic Arts Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% Marketing and distribution of
Products Limited liability company HK$10,000 printing products
in Hong Kong
HBERIRMERAR EB - BREELH HERE# 10,0007 RNEBIEEREHDRE R
C.Y. Sun Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
limited liability company US$10,000 in Hong Kong
RRELHE AREMLT EBR10,000ET REBUSREZER
E-Max Service Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% Provision of installation service
liability company HK$10,000 for household appliances
in Hong Kong
BETRREEBRAT BE  BREELT HBMR B 10,0007 REBRUZAZRZERE
Emmy Technology Development ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 60% Provision of professional
Limited liability company HK$10,000 audio-visual advisory and
custom design and installation
service in Hong Kong
UENBRBRERAF BE  BREELT HERE# 10,0007 REBRAEEY TR

T8 RIRRERS
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16 MEBATE#E) 16 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R2016F3A31HZEEMBARFENT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are
(& as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity

establishment and

Issued ordinary

attributable to the

Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital Company place of operation
ML/ B E ARAE
£ RERERNEE BRTEBRRA RABGZEAN TEEBREHXBE

Direct  Indirect

EE R

Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd.

REX(ER) A

Fuji Life Science Products Limited

ELAEBRRERBRAE

Fuji Photo Products Company

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt

BB AREELH

u

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREEAT

Hong Kong, limited

Ordinary share
HK$1,000,000

EERB%1,000,0007T

Ordinary share HK$2

EERENR2T

Ordinary share

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Provision of photographic
developing and processing
services and retail of
photographic merchandise
in Hong Kong

REBREES
HHRBREZENTE

Retail of skincare products
in Hong Kong

RERNSEEERTE

Marketing and distribution of

Limited liability company HK$10,000,000 photographic developing and
processing products
in Hong Kong and Macau
ELRYANBRAT £ AREELH L BME%10,000,0007T REBREMHEER

Great Earnings Investments
Limited

HERERRAT

Majestic Income Limited

BEARAH

Orderly Mind Enterprises Limited

BHEZERAF

Orient City Properties Limited

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREEAT

Ordinary share HK$2

EERER2T

Ordinary share HK$2

EERER2T

Ordinary share HK$2

EERER2T

Ordinary share HK$2

EERER2T

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

EHERENHER

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBUBMESE

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBUBMESE

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBUBMESE

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBUBMESE

103



104

e IR AR ML

16 MBLATE (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR2016F3831AZEEMBLARAFRBUT :

(4

Name

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
FHRARL,/ R L
REEEEME

16 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are

as follows: (Continued)

Issued ordinary
share capital

ERTEBRRA

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
NG
RAEZEDL

Direct  Indirect

BE i3

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEEBREEBR

Palace Glory Limited

Pride High Company Limited

HARRAF

Pro Audio Development Limited

EXYTRRERLT

Sky Rich (Asia) Limited

RE(EMERRT

Sky Year Resources Limited

REEFRERAF

Wai Ming Electrical Development

Limited

BREXBRERLT

YCY International Limited

ZRERERAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BE  BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BE  BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BE  BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BE  BREELT
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BE  BREELT
Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  BREELT

Ordinary share HK$2
EERER2T
Ordinary share HK$2
EERER2T
Ordinary share
HK$10,000
HBMR B 10,0007
Ordinary share HK$2
EERER2T
Ordinary share HK$2
EERER2T
Ordinary share
HK$10,000

EER 10,0007

Ordinary share
HK$10,000

EERE®10,0007

100%

- 100%

60%

100%

- 100%

60%

- 100%

Property holding in the PRC

REERENFRA

Property holding in the PRC

REERENFRA

Wholesales of audio and
visual products in Hong Kong

REBHBYEER

Property holding in the PRC

REERENFRR

Property holding in the PRC

REERENFRR

Retail and wholesales of
consumer electronic products
and household appliances
in Hong Kong

REBREHEEFERNR
ZRAERTERME

Retail and wholesales of
consumer electronic products
and household appliances
in Hong Kong

REBREEEEFERNR
ZRAERTERME
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MR2016FE3831AZEEMBLARAFBUT :
(%)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are
as follows: (Continued)

Percentage of

Issued ordinary equity attributable Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital to the Company  place of operation
AL,/ L NG
£ REEEEME ERTEBRRA RARGEAL FTEEBREXRME
Direct  Indirect
B &
SARABIER (L8)BRAH PRC, limited liability Ordinary share = 100% Marketing and distribution of
company USD$150,000 printing products in the PRC
HE - BEREEAR E1BMR 150,000 7T REEEERSHNFIER
EXEFRR(LEE)ERAT PRC, limited liability Ordinary share = 100% Provision of professional
company USD$150,000 audio-visual advisory and
custom design and
installation service in the PRC
HE - BEREEAR B 150,000% T RAERHEXYEREY

EXRAFIDESRHUAEEAFEXERE

HEIEAEBFEEETZHD AR AN
BAT - EERRFIHEMHWE LR 2FHES
EREBRIE °

ESRL  UEHAEEMEBERZFEZER

e o

R—HBELARZES

AR RETREERHE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
for the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

In the opinion of the directors that there is no non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group.

17 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

2016 2015

HK$ 000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

FEETRG - AR Unlisted shares, at cost - =
2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

FE UL — R B 1\ B FRIE Amount due from an associate 10,169 -

R20165F3 4318 » Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd (7
AT — 2 EMNE AT )EAdventure Sports
Academy Limiteds] 32 —IB IR REEE ZE 1% - UL
RABABHE 33T HEH33%MIAdventure Studios
LimitedZE R & A - B33 TR B E2016
FIA3IBLEFEFAGZEBER ©

On 31 March 2016, Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Adventure Sports Academy Limited to
dispose of its 33% registered capital of Adventure Studios
Limited at a consideration of HK$33 and gain of HK$33 was
credited to the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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17 R—RBREQTZHG (@) 17 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
El—EEEARRERERR - UEBAKES The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest
ERIZS%F R R ERIREREE - BIE2016 bearing at 5% per annum on balances as at each month-end
F3A31BLEFE  AEBAEEE QS KE and repayable on demand. During the year ended 31 March
EEERAEWA S B EREA350007T(2015 2016, the Group received management fee and interest
F . F)RBE171,0007T(20155F 1 &) o ZF income from its associate of HK$435,000 (2015: HK$Nil) and
REVDEBEZHRGEFTHBIBENERELT HK$171,000 (2015: HK$Nil), respectively. These transactions

were carried out at a rate mutually-agreed between the
parties involved in the transactions.

e — B E N R RIE 2 BREEEE A EE The carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
o approximates its fair value.
BEEAEENHE N AR Z2RREHR2ZIAE There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
f& o interest in an associate.
R20165F3A31H » AEER—RBBE AR 2 As at 31 March 2016, details of the Group’s interest in an
ERFBWT : associate are as follow:
Percentage
Place of Issued of equity
incorporation  ordinary attributable Measurement
Name and operations share capital to the Group  Principal activities method
FE AR SL K 21T REBEGER
=L =E ik BRI AEZADEE FTEXEK STERE
kikki.K Retail (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49% Retail of stationery, Equity
HK$300,000 life-style gifts and
home fashion products
58 ZERBE 49% WEXE - EFEEMR  Ex
300,0007T XEHRERTE
H2015%E3H831H » AEER—BEL AT As at 31 March 2015, details of the Group’s interest in an
REREET associate are as follow:
Percentage
Place of Issued of equity
incorporation  ordinary attributable Measurement
Name and operations share capital to the Group  Principal activities method
FE AR SL BT REBEER
=L =E Sk EERRA AEZADEE FEEK STEAE
Adventure Studios Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 33% Provision of workspace Equity
HK$100 for creative art events
&8 EERBE 33% IRALSHBEN R
1007T AIREINEE
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R—EBEATZHES (&) 17 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
AEEBE N R 2 BERBENT: Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate is
as follows:
kikki.K Retail Adventure
(H.K.) Limited Studios Limited
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
BWEE Total assets 9,820 964
wmeE Total liabilities 13,417 4,176
& Revenue 7,927 632
FREE Loss for the year (3,898) (900)
B 18 INVENTORIES

FEBZFEFRRHBEZRY - R

FER ZEEER HEESFERERRAS
28 ,

FTAMSEERZR |2 FE R4~ 5 78%598,183,000
7t (20154 : ##675,934,0007T) @ BEFTA
REBRRkZEEREBEY2,492,0007T (2015
F : B¥682,0007T) °

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic
developing, processing and printing products, skincare
products, consumer electronic products and household
appliances for resale.

The cost of inventories included in “cost of sales” amounted
to HK$598,183,000 (2015: HK$675,934,000) which
included a provision for inventories of HK$2,492,000 (2015:
HK$682,000) charged to the consolidated income statement.

B 5B RIE 19 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
g 5 EWERTE Trade receivables 63,732 37,878

B BB EWERIBIRERE Less: Provision for impairment

of trade receivables (698) (805)
63,034 37,073

AEEEEFZRSGEEURSABREHNE
T BBRERHEEMS  EEH-—MRABI15230
B BEBHERARFNRABEERHTLERE
1208 - BUEFHYERSRFEEMRE » IHS
MEWEFELHAE o REBB ) BIGIEFIAKE
BrRWERER  TREEEEHHPMAURER
KEERR - SREEEEHBREARHRR -

M2016F3H31H » ##E% 19,574,000 T
(20155 : Z)NEZEKRIRIET B —E IR
BEFEZNIE - R TARDEEREZRNAER
FEE -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are either on a
cash basis or on credit. For credit sales, the credit period is
generally 15 to 30 days, except for certain well-established
customers where the terms are extended to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit pre-approved by senior
management. The Group seeks to maintain strict control

over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$19,574,000 (2015: HK$Nil) are due from a single
external customer. The remaining balances are relating to a
large number of diversified customers.
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BENRIBEHE - ATRANREERESE

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

WERIBERA R 2 BRER AT of the year, based on the payment due date and net of
impairment, is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$ 000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
BPHA Current 50,856 25,634
12318 A 1 to 3 months 10,799 7,682
3EAUE Over 3 months 1,379 3,757
63,034 37,073
BoEWERIBHEREZZHUNT The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
R4A1H At 1 April 805 728
FREE(FHEE7) Provision during the year (note 7) (78) 78
[ P Exchange realignment (29) (1)
M3A31H At 31 March 698 805

ZE AR R RE 2 B 5 B W ARTE S & A A 8
BRE - BENRERAERZEF - AREILE
RSB EMERRREAEMREE
B

WERARREZE 5 EUORE 2 BREC DT

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to

customers that were in financial difficulties or in default or

delinquency in payments. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BET T
It SEEHA R A Neither past due nor impaired 50,856 25,634
B E B ERRE Less than 1 month past due
but not impaired 8,838 6,521
BH1E B A EEARBE 1 month and over 1 month past due
but not impaired 3,340 4918
63,034 37,073
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HHEWRIE (Z)
WHBHABEZEZERKREEZ VR
AEFER(BE—BE—IIREFNAEL
19,574,0007T (20155 : &)) » MKEEFERI
YN

ERMERREZESBRREARS SEALE
BERHENCHZBYEFEE - RIFERE
KE - AEBEBRABARZSERIEDLR
BEE  BRAEEERUEEAEE  ME
HERDEEATEHRE - AEBWERZE
FERTAEMRRRIEBREAEERR

AEEEZBWIREAZRAEEAFERS
WEBHEHE -

RBEAMAEGENRAEERRAE S EW
BRIBZ BRE(E o

FRBES  RBTAMRER - HERHfh
FE 1 R IR

AEBZERBRE - RBANE - RER
HitEWREARE - BB LMEEDBMN
BERE o LSRN EREEEYETHR
RALFNEWIRIAEERE - AEBERB IR
RERAMEREREZRAEEATEES °
RBEABAEGNRAEERMRA LREE
PR RRIE 2 AREIME ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers, included a
single external customer of HK$19,574,000 (2015: HK$N:il),
for which there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors of the Group are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in HK$.

The maximum credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of the trade receivables.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS, CURRENT PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s non-current deposits, current prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are non-interest bearing.
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
The Group’s non-current and current deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of receivable mentioned above.
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21 BERMBITHER 21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
REEEBR=EAZ Non-pledged time deposits with
EIRREHEFN original maturity of over three months 118,520 12,529
SEBRERBRAZ Cash and cash equivalents in the
HERBESEEER : consolidated statement of cash flows:
ReRIRITHERR Cash and bank balances 61,602 68,540
REHELR=@BAZ Non-pledged time deposits with
EIRIFERFER original maturity of less than three months 80,579 189,123
142,181 257,663
s Total 260,701 270,192

RER > ZREBUAREFEZRESRERT
EHRTFRPEIER 2R THE17,289,0007T
(20154 : #E#18,091,0007T) ° ARHEI &L
BEHRABRAHMEY  EREBEPEZ(INES
BIRPDOR(EE  EERVESERE) &
EEEAEZEBETETHIEEBE ZRITEAR
BEBRAHMEY -

FRIRIT 2R ERBERTE B FRFIRREVE
BAE - REAEEHNBRESFR 224
o EHESREFRE-BE-—FULERE U
DRI T E 2 EHFE © RITHEBRFAEE
RIFBWRETHENCEZRT - REBR
ERREZERE 2REEEQN P ERE

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$17,289,000
(2015: HK$18,091,000) deposited with the banks in the PRC.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and over one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.
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BEHREMIRERRE 22 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE
BREBEEMRESREZAHTE  EZE An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables at the
RHREREZBENFR ZRERDMAOT ¢ end of the year, based on the date of goods purchased and
services rendered, is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
3ME A LA Within 3 months 44,805 42,183
3fEA UL Over 3 months 969 833
45,774 43,016
AEBCEZRENRERZEAERE  BEE The Group’s trade and bills payable are non-interest-bearing
AR 0P MRS - AEBEEZSENERER and are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
ZE CEREEEAFEHEE - amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payable approximate
their fair values.
Eita G REMEIRE 23 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES
AEEZHMEMSREARE » H—RERD The Group’s other payables are non-interest bearing and have
H3ER - REBZzHME[IRE 2 REEH general terms of less than 3 months. The carrying amounts of
NEEEE o the Group’s other payables approximate their fair values.
ERIERIE 24 DEFERRED TAX
FEEHRIBEERBEEHRBEEN AT : The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
EEHEEE Deferred tax assets 183 293
ELEHEARE Deferred tax liabilities (25,276) (23,721)
EEBIEE E - F5E Deferred tax liabilities — net (25,093) (23,428)

ELWIAEHADRG T LERBAL S
T FRELHEAEREENARBAT ;

The gross movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, during the year are as
follows:
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24 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

Revaluation

of investment

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation

properties expense Total
BBHETEE
EfRENE AZNERHNSE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT T
201454818 At 1 April 2014 22,477 1,810 24,287
FRRGEBRTEXR (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
GPNVE]S income statement during the year
(MtzE£10) (note 10) (684) 126 (558)
& AR Exchange realignment (8) - (8)
M201563H31H At 31 March 2015
K2015%481H and 1 April 2015 21,785 1,936 23,721
FARGGEEZKIBR  Charged to the consolidated income
(FftzE10) statement during the year (note 10) 1,549 139 1,688
[E AR Exchange realignment (133) = (133)
M2016%F3A31H At 31 March 2016 23,201 2,075 25,276
BERBARE Deferred tax assets
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation
expense Others Total
BB EE
AiTERTA Hit A5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
M2014%F4818 At 1 April 2014 (57) (10) (67)
FARGEBRRR Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
HBR, (5t A) (Kf5E10)  income statement during the year (note 10) 57 (283) (226)
M2015563H31H At 31 March 2015
K2015F48 18 and 1 April 2015 - (293) (293)
FARGZAEEZFIMBR  Charged to the consolidated income
(K$5E10) statement during the year (note 10) = 110 110
M20165%3A31H At 31 March 2016 - (183) (183)
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24 ERERIE (&) 24 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

EIERIAEE (4
EEBBEEEDRAE2HERBER &
DEMAREBARZERF GRS R EEN
BRI AR - R2016F38310 > AEEL
48 7 B 1B 85 18 78 %5 54,713,000 7T (2015 £ ¢
7B # 51,653,000 ) R ELEHELEEBE
331,592,000t (20154 : 7 #£ 313,049,000
7o) » WeFERIE AT PR AR S A R S B A R R R Z
ERBETF - ARZERHER AT HUREREE
NS TEERRECEZF 2B AR E
B RURFBEEIELEREEE

M2016F3A318 ' BB TAKENB AT Z
FEHZEFNMES » WEEAKRBERZIELR
HEE(20155 : &) AAKEELESERZ
SHERE HEBRIEEIFR ©

ARATREERRIKE 2 RIBILETRAEHE
% o

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related

tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At

31 March 2016, the Group did not recognise deferred

tax assets of HK$54,713,000 (2015: HK$51,653,000) in
respect of tax losses amounting to HK$331,592,000 (2015:
HK$313,049,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses and deductible temporary differences
as they have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future
operating profit streams.

At 31 March 2016, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2015: HK$Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax
should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

25 B&F 25 SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
15 Shares BT T BT T
SARE Authorised:
& % 2,000,000,0008% 2,000,000,000 (2015: 2,000,000,000)
(20154 : 2,000,000,000f%) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREEE%1A 200,000 200,000
Number of
ordinary share
of HK$0.10 each Share capital
BREEEE1A
EEREE &S
HK$°000
BT T
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid
M20155%3H31H At 31 March 2015
K20165F3H31H and 31 March 2016 1,185,318,349 118,532
26 EiE 26 RESERVES

AEBMREBEURERAERBEFECZT
BRGRE U BBRESTAZGRARERER o

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 57 of
the consolidated financial statements.
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27 EEHVRYE

(@)

(b)

EREHEA
AEBRBELEHRNTHBEHERENE
(MiFE14) - KREER SR RI1E5F 1%
(20155 : 1 £55F) o AHGRART —HRBAE
HEAXNEREERBEERTREH
AEEE -

M2016F3H31H - NREBREBRFFT L
2 A HEE A & AR A0 T AT A R R URER 2 B
EESARBEZBHBERAOT ¢

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 5 years (2015: 1 to 5 years).
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1R Within one year 7,366 6,988
2ZESF (BIEEEWSE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 6,444 8,967
13,810 15,955

EHEBEA (b) As lessee

AEMRESERNRFAEE T EEMND
ME  PEAHECEETEABIZE3E
(20155 : 1E3F) - BEE BIHBMEASE
REGMS - BT FAUTHEZCEHEHER
EEHERERBEMTNEZHENSR
REEZBSEFL - HREZEBEMT
MEZ RREERLERBE » UTFIR
FAEBRAES - HEFAREELR
i o

M2016F3H31H » XEBH A IEEEZ
RERAMBRRREZ Tz REHESELE
BEAAIT -

The Group leases certain of its retail outlets under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for retail outlets are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years (2015: 1
to 3 years). Certain non-cancellable operating leases are
based on the higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the terms
and conditions as set out in the respective agreements.
As the future sales of these retail outlets could not be
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has
not been included below and only the minimum lease
commitments have been included.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

1R Within one year 53,777 46,854
2ESF (BIEEEWE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 34,228 40,565
88,005 87,419
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

W BERSEE Property, plant and equipment 1,306 494

RAEALES 29
BRREGS B RE M F AR EEN - FR
REBRAEBZ ERXEBBRETETT T
ERBEALRS -

FEBZTEEBRAERARAES F EXH
&2 E-DHIFENGRE BRI -

LENBSzemIR 30
BHETHMTARFERZIREENT !

CHEE -SERREKER

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following significant
related party transactions carried out in the normal course of
the Group’s business during the year.

The Group’s key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. Further details of directors’ remuneration are
included in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the year are as follows:

Financial assets — loans and receivables

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

25 EWERE Trade receivables 63,034 37,073
FEUR — B A RIFRIE Amount due from an associate 10,169 -
Be Kk EE W ERIE Deposits and other receivables 36,581 40,116
RERMITERS Cash and bank balances 260,701 270,192
370,485 347,381

AR -HUEREEARZEMAR

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

B RENREREE Trade and bills payable 45,774 43,016
EEtEEREMMENIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables

(GEERE/RM) excluding non-financial liabilities 29,220 31,415

74,994 74,431
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31 MERBREEARRBE

AEEZTESHTEABRRERIBITHERR °
ZETRMIACIEZENRAAEEEREE
BERET - AKETAREHMEREERE
& PINEEELERAREXBEECE5RE
WERIBLAR B 5 R ARE R 15 -

AEEERMIEMAH2ETEZARASERR
B FIEEE - FERERABESRER - &
SERNTRESEESHARZBER - W
W e

B 5= L BR

FEEEHEBARBHERRE - REBFHE
EEHRSRERAEXR KO EEAER
=Bz o

R2016F3A31 8 » fBELARBEE T
fB1% (20155 : 1%) @ MEMPAEESEEFT
% AFEERFIEILM,HD B 543,000
(20154 : i F #E#¥695,0007T) » £E
HRRBREREBRITUAREITEZRER
RITHBREEER NG BB -

HRERSEHAEEMSHARE » BUH

HEBHENEREEREBSER2HNE
BN o
R eRFERE

AEBEFES 2T SRS EBERERE
BIERITABRATREZ R EWAER - AEE 2
NEELEEFTELEBE ARBRERH
B AEEHEHERTEHANRELE 2R
BROBAREMEE AR AR -

HRRIES T #0.5% (20155 : 0.5%) i
BHMAZRZEFTE  AEEBIRRAE
FET BRI R 4> % 800,0007T (2015
& B #800,0007t) ¢ LLTIHAF B UK A 12
/R EER e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such

as trade receivables and trade and bills payable, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk with respect
to RMB. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk

by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2016, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
1% (2015: 1%) against RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been HK$543,000
higher/lower (2015: HK$695,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated cash and bank balances deposited with the
banks in Hong Kong.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are less sensitive to movement in exchange rates
as the amounts are not significant to the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the interest income

received on the Group’s bank balances. The Group’s interest-
generating assets are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
United States dollars. The Group manages its interest rate risk
by regularly monitoring the macro economic factors that may
impact on the interest rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% (2015: 0.5%) higher/
lower while all other variables are held constant, the profit for
the year and total equity would increase/decrease by HK$0.8
million (2015: HK$0.8 million) due to an increase/decrease in
interest income.
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31 MEBRREEEERBE &) 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

ERRRE
AEEERLRIRCEERFZE=ZARSG °
AEEBREREMERUREEARGZER
BETEASKER - B0 AEEEFEE
REWRELE - NEBREEBCR 2HBEEAR
e M RRMEE19

AEEHEGEREE(ZEZERFERERAESE
BHIEE  EHMEAREMERIKRE) 2EER
B DREEBRERBZNE  MEKER
ZRZETAZKREE -

REBRZZR U EETRAARN S BEET
o UREMERENEERR - ENZEEH
HERESSEENA  EEERIXRS 5 ERE
BATEE °

FEEEEEERYEREBRTASERN
FERE  WEEFHRALTEHETNEE
el @ b K B S E R (E) - HRASEER
RATRGCERFZE=ZARS  BBER
R o

mENR SRR
AEESFEERRBIREIE - XA NE
REEFZMZBEREEMRR - FERER

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Details of the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits, and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
deposits with financial institution that meet the established
credit rating of AA. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in Hong Kong

is monitored closely by management of the Group who
will assess the reputation, the risk of recoverability and
the financial information, if any, of the counter parties
before placing of deposits. Since the Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy
and strives to ensure that it maintains sufficient cash and
credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POLICIES (Continued)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

the end of the year, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

Between
Less than 1 year to
On demand 1 year 2 years Total
REREE PIMFE 1FZE26H A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000
BT BETR BETR BETR
2016%3H31H 31 March 2016
BEZEMNRERERE Trade and bills payables 19,451 26,323 = 45,774
B EREMENIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables
(GESREERD) excluding non-financial liabilities 25,720 3,500 - 29,220
45,171 29,823 - 74,994
Between
Less than 1 year to
On demand 1 year 2 years Total
REREE PIME 1FZE26H st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000
BT T BT T BT BT
2015%3H31H 31 March 2015
BEZENREREE Trade and bills payables 39,904 3,112 - 43,016
B EREMENIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables
(GEEmEmERM) excluding non-financial liabilities 11,057 16,858 3,500 31,415
50,961 19,970 3,500 74,431
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31 MBRREEERERBE &) 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
ExER Capital Management
AEEEREE 2T EABEARBAREEUEF The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
BREFTANBBLEURERBREZERL are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
Z o UEBHEBRJ|IRERREE - concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

7N £ [98 [R) R A T AR O 5 B 1 B B L AR R AR L The Group manages its capital structure and makes
REIAEHFE o REE AT E @ R FIKE adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
ZBE > BARRREEARN TR LS To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
RFAEERGE - HE2016F3831HK2015 adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
FI3A3ALEE  FEEAEEZEE K to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
KRRFULEEBE o in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

AEBFARBEE(NRBEERAREE The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
BIERER - AEEZBRAESTRBLLE current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s
=R100% - RBEEBEEFE - EZEWER policy is to keep the current ratio above 100%. Current assets
1~ FENRIE - REREMEWERIE - ATYRE include inventories, trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
HIERRERBITES - RBDEEEEZEZE and other receivables, tax recoverable and cash and bank
RFIREREE - BEiHEE «  HtENRERE balances. Current liabilities include trade and bills payable,
B o accrued liabilities, other payables and tax payable.
2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

BET T BT T
REEEAE Total current assets 528,276 539,629
mEaERAE Total current liabilities (107,314) (104,136)
REEEEE Net current assets 420,962 435,493

TEDLE =R Current ratio 492% 518%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
2016 2015

Note HK$ 000 HK$’000

G BT BT
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
RITE A BRE Investments in subsidiaries 608,908 609,484
REVEE Current assets
FEUS BB A B FIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - 2,000
FERREREAFEUWIRE  Prepayments and other receivables 245 247
RHERIBITERR Cash and cash equivalents 917 695
REEEAE Total current assets 1,162 2,942
EEHE Total assets 610,070 612,426
s EQUITY
AATHEE AEGRER Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

i Share capital 118,532 118,532
=i Reserves (a) 489,437 492,234
g Total equity 607,969 610,766
a& LIABILITIES
REBEE Current liabilities
EstBEREMAEMIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables 2,101 1,660
BERE Total liabilities 2,101 1,660
EaRkBEAE Total equity and liabilities 610,070 612,426

AATEEEBERCN2016F6H23AEES
SHETRUTEEAREE -

PN

EE

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 23 June 2016 and was signed on its

behalf.

BIEsA

EIEER TR

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note:
RATZREEE (@) Movement of reserve of the Company
(Accumulated
Share Capital losses)/
premium  redemption  Contributed retained
account reserve surplus earnings Total
R &5 (REHEE)
RER HE R BfERS  REER fam
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BB BMTR BMTR BMTR BETR
H201454A1H At 1 April 2014 490,378 1,619 130 - 492,127
FERFR Profit and total comprehensive
EELON L income for the year - - = 11,960 11,960
2015FFHHEIR S 2015 interim dividend - - - (11,853) (11,853)
R2015%3A31H At 31 March 2015
K2015F4 418 and 1 April 2015 490,378 1,619 130 107 492,234
FEBER Loss and total comprehensive
2HEEBAE loss for the year - - - (2,797) (2,797)
H201653A31H At 31 March 2016 490,378 1,619 130 (2,690) 489,437

ARAF 2 EBRERAFWIENE QB RD
ZAFEBEA D B FH A R AT
2R ZEEZED - RIBARE19815F
REDE(RER) - —BARTRETIER
TEHEHRREOERREHDIK

FR - BREBEMREFHEREEETET
(20154 : 78%11,853,0007T) °

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of

the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over

the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), a company may make distributions to its members

out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK$Nil (2015:

HK$11,853,000) was distributed out of retained earnings.
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33 EEHERES(FREME622E(AT 33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

EH)EISIFAF(HFESFHEEIH) (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
) (B6226E)REFEZELTHAUKES HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
ZHRRESHREZER) COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A) EEEE (A) Directors’ emoluments
RESHEHEIWT : The remuneration of every director is set out below:
HZE201643831HILEE : For the year ended 31 March 2016:
Employer's Estimated
contribution to  money value
Discretionary a retirement of other
Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme benefits Total
FFa EEZEK  EitFEN
B (M) Name of directors (Note (i) e e MR BAGEAMR GHENEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B%Trn E%Tr BETT BT E%TR
YN Sun Tai Lun, Dennis 150 1,200 75 18 - 1,443
b LN ) Sun Tao Hung, Stanley (note ii) 110 1,898 105 18 - 2,131
REE Ng Yuk Wah, Eileen 110 1,068 67 18 - 1,263
HEE Tang Kwok Tong, Simon 110 921 58 18 - 1,107
BXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 200 - - - - 200
£ Li Ka Fai David 234 = = - - 234
£l Liu Hui Allan 130 - - - - 130
BT Wong Chi Yun Allan 200 - - - - 200
EHE Fung Yue Chun Stephen 120 - - - - 120
w5t Total 1,364 5,087 305 1/} - 6,828
HZE201543A831HIEEE(KES]): For the year ended 31 March 2015 (restated):
BERBEQRKHIFEENEZE20155F3 Certain of the comparative information of directors’ for
B31ALFEEEHEME TLHEERE the year ended 31 March 2015 previously disclosed in
KEY > LERFEREDAEH(FE622 accordance with the predecessor Companies Ordinance
B)PHEERRE ° have been restated in order to comply with the new

scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Employer's Estimated

contribution to  money value

Discretionary a retirement of other
Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme benefits Total

Fas  EEZRMN  EtAEe
24 (M) Name of directors (Note (i)) s e WA BAREIMEE AHESER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT ERTR BT BT BETT BT

YN Sun Tai Lun, Dennis 150 1,332 388 18 = 1,888
3B (i) Sun Tao Hung, Stanley (note i) 110 2,024 445 18 = 2,597
REE Ng Yuk Wah, Eileen 110 984 287 18 = 1,399
HER Tang Kwok Tong, Simon 110 858 250 18 - 1,236
BXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 200 - - - - 200
ZRE Li Ka Fai David 210 = = = = 210
2E Liu Hui Allan 130 = = = = 130
IR Wong Chi Yun Allan 200 - - - - 200
st Total 1,220 5,198 1,370 72 - 7,860
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(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

EEle(E)
FfaE -

(i) EXFARNFMRRZEESUAEERE
BNARNENRREARAEEZESH
SD ) AN 5= B FT W ER O B

(i) BRELFBAEBETHRAR - H MR
BB ERTRARREE 2R -

ESRAREFIREILEREF
FRBEESC WA W EETR AR
AL LB AERI (2015 & © ) -

BRUEEEREAE=HREREEE
B E

HZE201643831 AILFE » REEH
EHREEEREQEMAE=Z S ZAFRE
(2015 £ : #|&) o

FRLEE HZXRZIEREMEEES
ERANER ERRREMZTHHEH

R201643 8318 © MEUES - HZ=
TERZTEERASHEANER  EEX
R EAMR Z ZHE (20155 : [HE) °

ESERXS  RESGHHEXER

AN R V RAEEELEE 0 MA
AR ESHEREEREEARSZARNF
ARFAEAKEFENEARS ~ 28
k&M -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(A) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

Note:

(i) The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received from the Group by these directors in their capacity
as employees to the Group and/or in their capacity as

directors of the companies now comprising the Group.

(ii) Sun Tao Hung, Stanley is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group and his remuneration disclosed above includes
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
Officer.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2015: HK$Nil).

Consideration provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2015: HK$Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2016, there is no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors (2015: HK$Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company

had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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2016%F3H31H

Details of Investment Properties

31 March 2015

Location Category of lease Existin use
(VA HHER RisH
BB Unit D on the 1st Floor and Medium term leasehold Warehouse
NugE Car Park Space Nos. 16 HHELD b
AR and 17 on the Ground Floor
EEEE215% and Car Park Space No. 10
REIEAEIEDEN - on the Lower Ground Floor
T EENI6RITHR Eldex Industrial Building
TEBFEEL 105 21 Ma Tau Wai Road
Hunghom
Kowloon
Hong Kong
HEARENE 8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre Medium term leasehold Commercial
bE 588 Yan An East Road FHETEL ES
BEHE Huang Pu District
L2 R IR 5885 Shanghai
REEEHL8E People’s Republic of China
Bl Units 2301, 2303, 2305 and 2307 Medium term leasehold Commercial
%ﬁ R on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre HEY ES
B hi5220-2485% Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
§}’%I¥¢‘/l}\23$§ New Territories
2301 2303 ~ 2305/%2307Z Hong Kong
5B Unit No. 6 on 6th Floor together with Medium term leasehold Commercial
LEE Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 AL S
SRBETR on Ground Floor, Block C
SEIEAEMECER Ko Fai Industrial Building
CREi T BEFIHIRIE37 » No. 7 Ko Fai Road
51 %6055 Kowloon
Hong Kong
BE Units 2509, 2511-16 Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR on 25th Floor and Vehicle Parking FEITEL
B+ H3E220-248%% Space No. 23 on 1st Floor
TETERL258 Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
2509  2511-16E K Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
EEHERRIE235 New Territories
Hong Kong
aE Vehicle Parking Space No. 65 on 1st Floor Medium term leasehold Commercial
R Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre HEAE A e
’ﬁia 220-2485f Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
2ETEHDL New Territories
1*§$§ﬁrzﬂsﬁﬁ%655ﬁ Hong Kong
HEARENE Whole of 27th Level and Medium term leasehold Commercial
EXRE Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 HHEAE A S
BN Guang Fa Bank Building
RILE No. 83 Lower Long Lin Road
BT 8835 Dongshan District
ERTRAE Guangzhou
2722 ERFEN3T - Guangdong Province
38%39%% People’s Republic of China
qﬁék% L FEL Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level Medium term leasehold Commercial
Jin Cheng Zhong Xin RERFE A %
FE%ﬁﬁ%@E 4th District, Fang Qun Garden
SHAL Fang Zhuang District
14¥£1401-1408% Beijing
People’s Republic of China
EF‘%AE LFIE Unit No. 4 on Levels 17/18 together with Long term leasehold Commercial
L Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F REAELN -
RER Golden Bridge Mansion
L FRE20775% 2077 Yan An Road West
ERAE Changning District
17/181B4ZE Shanghai
I EEL105 People’s Republic of China
HEARENE Unit C-13, C-14, C-15 Long term leasehold Commercial
BEE An’Xin Building 84 =
sam Heping Main Road
FFRIE (55T 488) (Yanjiang 4th Road), Haikou
ZERE Hainan Province

C-13 ~C-14 » C-15%

People’s Republic of China
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